
 

 

 

 
City of Woodstock 

Office of the City Manager 
Phone (815) 338-4301   Fax (815) 334-2269 

citymanager@woodstockil.gov 
www.woodstockil.gov 

121 W. Calhoun Street          Roscoe C. Stelford III  
Woodstock, Illinois 60098         City Manager 
 

                       WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

City Council Chambers 

February 17, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

                                 

Any Person Wishing to Address the City Council 

Must Approach the Podium, be Recognized by the 

   Mayor, and Provide Their Name and Address for the Record 

 

The complete City Council packet is available at the Woodstock Public Library, 

Woodstock City Hall, and via the City Council link on the City’s website, 

www.woodstockil.gov.  For further information, please contact the Office of the 

City Manager at 815-338-4301 or citymanager@woodstockil.gov. 

   

The proceedings of the City Council meeting are being audio-recorded only 

to aid in the preparation of the Minutes and are not retained as part of the 

permanent records of the City. 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

ROLL CALL: 

 

A. FLOOR DISCUSSION:  Proclamation Recognizing Chester Gould Day 

     

 

Anyone wishing to address the Council on an item not already on the agenda may do 

so at this time. 

1. Public Comments 

2. Council Comments    

                   

CONSENT AGENDA: 
(NOTE: Items under the consent calendar are acted upon in a single motion.  There is 

no separate discussion of these items prior to the Council vote unless: 1) a Council 

Member requests that an item be removed from the calendar for separate action, or 2) 

a citizen requests an item be removed and this request is, in turn, proposed by a 

member of the City Council for separate action.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mailto:citymanager@woodstockil.gov


Woodstock City Council  

February 17, 2015 

Page Two 

 

 

B.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              

            February 3, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

 

  

C.        WARRANTS:   3651 3652   MFT 543 

 

 

 

D. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  

 Community & Economic Development Year-End Report 2014 

            Economic Development Commission Minutes – November 11, 2014 

  

    

E. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 40 

 

1. Liquor License Amendment –Facets – Adoption of an Ordinance 

Amending Section 3.3.6, Classification of Licenses; Numbers and Fees 

of the Woodstock City Code which would increase the number of Class 

E3 liquor licenses for Studio 2015 Design Inc. d/b/a Facets. 

 

 

 2.  Walnut/Ash Stormwater Improvements – Adoption of a Resolution      

                        authorizing application to the 2015 Community Development Block         

                        Grant through McHenry County for the Walnut/Ash Neighborhood          

                        Stormwater Management Project. 

 

           3.  Zimmerman Road Stormwater Improvements – Adoption of a               

                         Resolution authorizing application to the 2015 Community Development 

                         Block Grant through McHenry County for the Zimmerman Road             

                         Neighborhood Stormwater Management Project.  

 

                                    4.   ComEd Green Region – Donato Conservation Area – Adoption of a 

Resolution authorizing participation in the 2015 ComEd Green Region 

Program for Pathways to Education at William C. Donato Conservation 

Area Project. 

 

   5   Professional Services – Irving Avenue Lift Station – Approval of an 

agreement for professional services from Baxter and Woodman for the 

evaluation of existing conditions at the Irving Avenue lift station. 

 

 6.   Professional Services – Woodstock Municipal Landfill – Approval of 

       an amendment to an agreement for Professional Services from Conestoga 

       Rovers & Associates for the Woodstock Municipal Landfill site. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(40a)(Doc.1) 

 

 

 

 

 

(40b)(Doc.2) 

 

 

 

 

(40c)(Doc.3) 

 

 

 

 

(40d)(Doc.4) 

 

 

 

 

(40e) 

 

 

 

(40f) 

 

 

 



Woodstock City Council  

February 17, 2015 

Page Three 

 

 7. Intergovernmental Agreement – Bike Path – Adoption of an                

Ordinance between the County of McHenry, the City of                            

Woodstock and the McHenry County Conservation District for               

the design, construction, maintenance and reconstruction of a                 

bike path along U.S. Route 14. 

 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

ADJOURN  

 

NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), this 

and all other City Council meetings are located in facilities that are physically 

accessible to those who have disabilities.  If additional reasonable 

accommodations are needed, please call the City Manager’s Office at 815/338-

4301 at least 72 hours prior to any meeting so that accommodations can be made. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(40g)(Doc.5) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



       City of    

               
 

City Manager’s Off ice                                                121  W.  Calhoun  St reet   

Terry Wil lcockson                                           Woodstock,  I l l ino is  60098  

Grant  Wri ter                                                                                            815/338-4300  ext .  11128                               

                                                                                                                       fax 815/33 4-2269  

                                                                                                       gran twri ter@woodstocki l .gov       

                                                                                                                 www.woodstocki l .gov  

Memo 
To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

From: Terry Willcockson, Grant Writer 

Date: February 10, 2015 

Re: Chester Gould Day Proclamation 

 

The February 17, 2015 City Council Agenda includes a Proclamation designating Sunday, 

February 22, 2015 as CHESTER GOULD DAY in Woodstock.  As City Council is certainly 

aware, Chester Gould is the creator of the world-renown Dick Tracy comic strip who lived and 

worked in Woodstock for almost 50 years, until his passing in 1985 at the age of 84.  During this 

time, Mr. Gould’s enormous contributions to the community prompted the founding of the 

Chester Gould-Dick Tracy Museum, as well as the Dick Tracy Days annual summer parade.  

While no longer quite so prevalent, Mr. Gould’s lasting impact on bringing community pride and 

joy to the residents of Woodstock cannot be overstated. 

 

Since 2007, a local family, Tom Firak and his sons John and Steve, have been diligently 

researching the life and accomplishments of Chester Gould.  Both John and Steve are Film/Video 

graduates of Columbia College Chicago; John continued his education, obtaining a Master’s 

degree from Northeastern University with the goal of teaching, while Steve pursued developing 

his talents by launching his own video/audio company, Ahoj Productions.   

 

With the Museum Board’s and Gould family’s full cooperation and approval, the Firaks have 

conducted interviews, compiled photographs and memorabilia, and shot and edited video footage 

to create a feature length documentary CHESTER GOULD: AN AMERICAN ORIGINAL.  Their 

efforts were rewarded recently with the announcement that this film will be broadcast to the 

Chicagoland region on WTTW-Channel 11 on Sunday, February 22, 2015 at 3:00pm. 

 

In recognition and support of this wonderful effort, and the lasting positives benefiting the 

Woodstock community as a result of the film’s viewing for decades to come, the City 

Administration is proposing the date of the film’s premiere be designated CHESTER GOULD 

DAY in Woodstock.  In addition, the City Administration and Woodstock Celebrates Inc. are 

partnering to help the Firaks, along with colleagues, friends and family of Mr. Gould, to celebrate 

this esteemed occasion with a private showing and reception at Stage Left Café, an event to 

which the City Council is graciously invited. 

rstelford
Approved



PROCLAMATION 
Honoring 

CHESTER GOULD DAY 
 
WHEREAS, the fictional detective Dick Tracy, and the comic strip heralding his crime 
stopping adventures, are an iconic part of American culture, recognized around the world; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dick Tracy’s creator, the brilliant cartoonist Chester Gould, lived most of his life 
in Woodstock, commuting to Chicago daily for years while employed by the Chicago Tribune; and 
 
WHEREAS, with a vivid imagination for criminal appearances and actions, Chester Gould 
offered readers such villainous protagonists as Flattop, Pruneface, Shaky and Mumbles, along 
with socially memorable characters such as Tess Trueheart, Gravel Gertie and B.O. Plenty; and 
 
WHEREAS, through his characters’ pointed representations of good and evil, Chester Gould 
promoted the most positive moral and ethical values of his era, when bravery, honesty and hard 
work were justly rewarded, and greed, deceit and larceny were righteously punished; and  
 
WHEREAS, during the 46 years Chester Gould created this colorful strip, 1931-1977, society 
was offered an uncanny glimpse into future possibilities, with devices like Tracy’s two-way wrist 
radio, caller ID and the magnetic air car depicting technology well before its time; and 
 
WHEREAS, aided by his devoted daughter, Jean Gould O’Connell, Chester Gould’s followers 
created the Chester Gould-Dick Tracy Museum, formerly housed in the Old Courthouse on the 
Square and continuing as a virtual museum online, as well as the Dick Tracy Days Parade, a 
Woodstock summer highlight for many years, further celebrating Dick Tracy’s popularity and 
attracting thousands of visitors to enjoy Woodstock, and;  
 
WHEREAS, with the museum board’s and family’s approval, a feature length documentary 
Chester Gould: An American Original has been professionally produced through the videographic 
talents of residents Tom Firak and sons Steve and John, Film/Video graduates of Columbia 
College Chicago, to be broadcast on WTTW-Channel 11 and viewed in Woodstock on February 
22, 2015, ensuring Chester Gould’s legacy lives on for generations to come. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City Council of the City of 
Woodstock, on behalf of all citizens of Woodstock, wishes to proclaim February 22, 2015 as 
CHESTER GOULD DAY in Woodstock, and to congratulate and commend the Firak family 
for their creative efforts to commemorate on film Chester Gould’s enduring importance to 
Woodstock and to the world. 
 
APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry 
County, this 17th day of February, 2015. 
 
 

______________________________________ 
     Michael Turner, Mayor Pro Tem 
Attest:                                                               
 
______________________________ 
Arleen Quinn, City Clerk  



MINUTES 

WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

February 3, 2015 

City Council Chambers 

 

The regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor 

Pro-Tem Mike Turner on Tuesday, February 03, 2015 in Council Chambers at City Hall. 

 

A roll call was taken. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Pro-Tem Mike Turner, Joseph Staryzynski, Mark 

Saladin, Maureen Larson, RB Thompson.  

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT:  Mayor Brian Sager, J. Dillon.  

 

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg, Finance 

Director Paul Christensen, Director of Public Works Paul Ruscko, Opera House Managing 

Director John Scharres, HR Director Deb Schober, Chief of Police Lowen, Recreation Director 

David Zimmer. 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: City Clerk Arleen Quinn. 

 

FLOOR DISCUSSION:  

Public Comments: 

Scott Gussert, 810 Cherry St, Woodstock, IL questioned the Council’s use of a lobbyist, what 

procedure took place in choosing one, and how that progress is monitored. He also asked for the 

vetting process to be described. 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Turner responded that other municipalities, school districts, and private entities 

hire lobbyists to represent them and their interests in Springfield. He said that we both participate 

individually in that and may even coordinate with other governmental bodies for that purpose. 

Whatever you may feel about using a lobbyist it is a part of doing business if you want to be 

represented in Springfield. The Mayor Pro-Tem asked City Manager, R. Stelford to speak to the 

monetary value involved.  R. Stelford spoke to the oversight involved in monitoring these efforts 

and said that the lobbyist sends reports, comes in and speaks with staff, and encourages staff, the 

Mayor, and City Council to do drive downs to Springfield. The next trip to Springfield will be a 

joint drive down with McHenry County Council of Government in early March to speak directly 

with key leaders in the House and Senate. It is an important part of today’s environment that 

governments have to hire lobbyists to represent their interests if they are trying to pursue major 

projects to benefit the community. This Council has been dedicated to transportation and 

transportation projects which come with significant price tags. A lobbyist working on our behalf 

is the best means to acquire those projects. 

 

The lobbying is a necessary part of the process. If we don’t have representation in Springfield we 

could be left with having our interests not fully represented.  We do keep an eye on this budget, 

just as we would with any other line item, as we vote on expenditures at that level. 



   Woodstock City Council 

   2/03/15 

   Page 2 of 9  
 
As to the vetting process, Mr. Stelford explained that a committee was formed including himself, 

the mayor, the Director of EDC, and the Economic Development Director. Proposals were sent 

out to a number of lobbyists. We also reached out to both our State Senator and the State Rep for 

recommendations, based on these recommendations we sent out for interviews, brought in three 

different lobbyist firms to talk to, reviewed their credentials and as a result selected our lobbyist.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Turner said a very critical eye is given to this process, and that we expect 

performance from them and if that does not happen we will end the relationship. 

 

RB Thompson joined the discussion saying that transportation is our primary focus because of 

the large price tag on it, particularly Rt. 47. Previously, we hired Mr. Milton See, a former 

Secretary of Transportation for the State of IL, former mayor of Mt. Vernon, who was well 

connected with the current secretary of transportation. He did not produce results which was a 

major disappointment. Our current lobbyist has been very productive, resulting in getting Rt.  14 

between Woodstock and Crystal Lake improved.  Phase 1 is already completed and they are now 

working on phase 2. These are dramatic improvements. 

 

M. Larson said that Cook County, along with so many other entities in the State has a very large 

voice in Springfield. An absence of a voice in Springfield makes it too easy for them to put our 

concerns on the back burner. She said she saw value when, due to the efforts of our lobbyist, we 

were able to talk with Speaker Madigan on our last trip to Springfield. Mr. Gussert thanked the 

Council for their comments. 

 

There were no other public comments. 

 

Council Comments: 

M. Saladin thanked public works and everyone involved in preparing for Groundhog Day, 

especially with the added magnitude of the snow storm.  Mayor Pro-Tem Turner thanked the 

Woodstock Groundhog Day Committee as well. The Harold Ramis dedication ceremony at the 

movie theater went very well. There was great representation and a real appreciation expressed 

for what he had done in his career as well as in Woodstock. It’s quite an honor for Woodstock to 

have his dedication plaque here at the theater. 

 

RB Thompson said he would like to mention the work that the Johnson’s, owners of Classic 

Cinema, did in fostering celebration for Groundhog Day.  Shirley Johnson opened the theater at 

10 AM.  The three largest screens were holding a little more than 400 people with free showings. 

The showings ended at noon with the audiences flooding downtown Woodstock; that was a 

present from the Johnson’s to the community and to their fellow retailers.  RB also had a 

question for Paul Ruscko about the mountains of snow at the intersections. Were there no trucks 

to transport snow from the square to Emricson Park? 

 

P.Ruscko said that all of the contractors that we hire were fully available with all of the resources 

we asked for while also offering additional resources to help clear the massive snow piles left 

from the blizzard. We started the operation at 10PM.  The sheer volume of snow and the snow 

piles, with the 12 to 15 inches of snow, took an additional amount of time to haul.   

M. Larson began her report on the Technical Advisory Panel by first thanking public works for 

their efforts with the snow removal. She then gave a brief report on meeting with the Technical 



   Woodstock City Council 

   2/03/15 

   Page 3 of 9  
 
Advisory Panel, the objective being the highest and best use for the Old Courthouse, a process 

sponsored by the McHenry County Foundation. Ms. Larson met for the first time with the Urban 

Land Institute who have completed quite a few of these projects around the city. She felt that 

they are an impressive group of people and she also felt optimistic that professionals and experts 

will spend two days looking at the building, the community, and realistic possibilities with a 

view to the finances and the marketing needed. This will be a very helpful process that will take 

place March 10 and 11. They will have architects, finance, marketing and real estate 

development professionals volunteering their time, looking at just our building, and helping us 

figure out what the best use for it is. Hopefully, we can make the Courthouse the economic 

engine that we would all like to see it become. 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Turner gave a quick update on the Woodstock group that will take the 

marketing slogan, Woodstock Celebrates, on to accomplishment. The people from Woodstock 

Celebrates, Inc. have appointed Pete Gil and Beth Davis as their two members. After 

consultation with them we decided on a joint appointment of Tom Doherty from Studio 2015.  

Mayor Pro-Tem Turner met with Mr. Doherty two weeks ago, who was very thrilled to be a part 

of this, already bringing some interesting ideas and great enthusiasm to the table. He said he is 

optimistic to include in this campaign someone with Mr. Doherty’s skills and experience.  The 

group will meet again, set out a simple mission statement, and discuss how we are going to 

operate. We will then begin the process of looking for somebody to come in and partner with us 

who will take this campaign and do something with it.   

 

It was noted that the courthouse stairs, but not the Sheriff’s stairs, are completed at this time. 

Landscaping is still needed.  

 

There were no additional council comments. 

 

Consent Agenda: 

Motion by M. Saladin, second by M. Larson to concur with Consent Agenda Items A-C-D 2. 

  

 M. Saladin removed Item B 

 M. Saladin removed Item D3 

 

A.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              

            January 20, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

  

B.        WARRANTS:   3649 3650 

 

C. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  

 Transportation Commission Minutes – November 19, 2014 

 Historic Preservation Minutes – November 24, 2015 

 

D. MANAGER’S REPORT NO. 39 

1. Property Tax Abatement Ordinance – Adoption of the following: 



   Woodstock City Council 

   2/03/15 

   Page 4 of 9  
 

a. Ordinance 15-O-05 abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance 02- O-108 and 

supplemented by Ordinance 04-O-26 and further supplemented by Ordinance 13-O-42; 

b. Ordinance 15-O-06X abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance 02-O-108 and 

supplemented by Ordinance 04-O-15; 

c. Ordinance 15-O-07 abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance 14- O-35 refunding 

a portion of the Series 2003 and 2005B General Obligation Bonds. 

d. Ordinance 15-O-08 abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance 08- O-41; 

e. Ordinance 15-O-09 abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance 10- O-34; 

f. Ordinance 15-0-10 abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance 10- O-34 refunding a 

portion of the Series 2000D Alternate Revenue Bonds; 

g. Ordinance 15-O-11 abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance 10- O-34 refunding 

a portion of the Series 2002E Alternate Revenue Source Bonds; 

h. Ordinance 15-O-12 abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance 10- O-34 refunding 

a portion of the Series 2002F Alternate Revenue Source Bonds; and 

i. Ordinance 15-O-13 abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance 10- O-34 refunding 

a portion of the Series 2002G Alternate Revenue Source Bonds. 

 

2.   Emergency Purchase – LiveScan Fingerprinting Device – Affirmation of the emergency 

purchase of a Biometrics LiveScan Fingerprinting Device and associated materials in the amount 

of $19,500. 

 

3. Community and Economic Development Reorganization –                                             
Approval of the following: 

a. An additional position of a Department Director for the Building, Planning and Zoning 

Department 

b. Updated/Adjusted FY14/15 Schedule of Authorized Positions and Salary Structures. 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Turner said the consent calendar now contains all items A-C-D2, having 

removed items B and D3. Mayor Pro-Tem Turner asked for a motion of concurrence on all 

remaining items.  

 

A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: M. Saladin, M. Larson, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski, Mayor 

Pro-Tem Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: J. Dillon, Mayor Sager. Abstentions: None. Motion 

carried. 

 

Item B Warrant 3649 

Scott Gussert, 810 Cherry St., Woodstock, Il. voiced his concerns on Warrant 3649, page 18,  

packet page 33. The items Mr. Gussert inquired about are the successive check numbers 99750 

99751, 99752, and 99753. He questioned unethical practices such as nepotism, and wanted 

further explanation to the common surname among these cheeks. Mayor Pro-Tem Turner asked 

R. Stelford to comment. R. Stelford said these are various payments that are made from the 

Recreation Department for services that were provided. Recreation Director David Zimmer then 

commented saying the services are for a basketball camp he runs outside of his normal 

employment. Jay helped run the camp, Matt is a referee, he also helped with the basketball camp 

and Ryan is a score keeper. Mayor Pro-Tem Turner asked Mr. Zimmer if other people 

participated in the camp as well. Mr. Zimmer said they have 22 games every Saturday with six or 



   Woodstock City Council 

   2/03/15 

   Page 5 of 9  
 
seven referees. We have score keepers for Olsen, Creekside, and Prairie Wood. The camp was 

run at the recreation center, again part of the Recreation Department.  They also helped over 

Christmas break when we ran skills camps in the mornings for the developmental programs. 

Mayor Pro-Tem Turner asked if payments are in line with what other people are paid and could 

documentation be provided if necessary. He went on to say that the Council always maintains 

transparency which is why the warrants are published. Mr. Zimmer said that documentation 

could be provided. Mr. Gussert was asked if he had any further questions, he did not, and 

thanked Council. 

 

There being no further discussion, the Mayor Pro-Tem called for a vote on the motion on the 

floor. 

 

Motion by M. Larson, seconded by M. Saladin to concur with Item B, Warrant 3649. 

 

A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: M. Larson, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski, M. Saladin, Mayor 

Pro-Tem Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: J. Dillon, Mayor Sager. Abstentions: None. Motion 

carried. 

 

Item D 3  Community and Economic Development Reorganization –  Approval of the 

following: 

a. An additional position of a Department Director for the Building, Planning and 

Zoning Department 

b. Updated/Adjusted FY14/15 Schedule of Authorized Positions and Salary Structures. 
 

M. Saladin commented that he thinks that having a separate, additional position is a good idea, as 

the City moves forward with various efforts. He was interested in R. Stelford’s thoughts about 

the comment that sometimes the efforts of the building department are diametrically opposed to 

someone who is involved with economic activity.  

 

R. Stelford explained that he thinks the opposition comes in as the Building Department is a 

regulatory body for the City and very important to protect public safety if necessary.  The 

mission of  business development/ economic personnel are sometimes opposed to building and 

planning as drawing in and supporting businesses sometimes are opposed to the regulatory 

process of building codes that also needs to be in place.  Right now the Director has to be the 

mediator, deciding on the importance of giving in on a point to secure a business against the 

impact of public safety.  

 

Comments on the coordinator position consisted of wanting someone who has experience with 

sales, is extroverted, very much in the community, very personable, and very good at building 

and retaining relationships. It was also suggested that they could have less municipal experience 

but possess considerable business development experience.  It was also commented that other 

communities, such as Huntley are very aggressive and focused on their growth and Woodstock 

needs to use its positives to also be focused and aggressive in this area. This is a high impact 

position and as such will get a lot of scrutiny from Council. 

 



   Woodstock City Council 

   2/03/15 

   Page 6 of 9  
 
Finance and HR have to have a very good relationship and that same relationship is required for 

Community Development and Building, Planning and Zoning. Building, Planning and Zoning is 

sluggish at this point. There is some excess resource capacity in that department that we can use 

to aim at economic development and help in those efforts until such point in time when things 

start taking off. We may, at that time, need to bring back some personnel in the building dept. 

with positions we haven’t filled. M. Saladin asked if from a budget standpoint it will be a net 

zero at this point other than some changes in physical space. R. Stelford said he thought 

originally this approach might be a little more expensive than what the current approach is but 

after seeing the preliminary budgets it is going to be fairly close. It might be a little more 

expensive but not that much, closer to $5,000 to $10,000. 

 

M. Larson asked if both people in Economic Development would be doing business retention 

and attraction. R Stelford said the person needs to be brought on board before a decision on that 

is made. It may be that one will work on retention and one work on attraction or it could also be 

based on industries dependent on their background experience. 

 

There being no further discussion Mayor Pro-Tem Turner called for a vote on the motion on the 

floor.  

 

Motion by M. Saladin, seconded by J. Starzynski, to approve and recommend that an additional 

position of a Department Director for the Building, Planning, and Zoning Department and for the 

up-date adjusted versions of the fiscal year 2014-15 schedule of authorized positions and salary 

structure as set forth in the packet.  

 

A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: J. Starzynksi, M. Saladin, M. Larson, RB Thompson, and 

Mayor Pro-Tem Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: Mayor Sager, J. Dillon. Abstentions: None. 

Motion carried.  

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

DISCUSSION OF THE PREVIOUSLY TRANSMITTED CIP BUDGET PROPOSED FOR 

FY15/16 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

Mayor Pro-Tem Turner said for those of us who have been through the process before we are at 

the stage now where we look at the wish list and we have the opportunity to provide some 

guidance on its direction and prioritization.  We are not making decisions on those items today. 

That occurs, with input, at the budget workshop and then with final voting when we vote on the 

budget in April. Now we have the opportunity to talk about the general prioritization and asked 

R. Stelford for his comments.  

 

R. Stelford said we did spend about 4.5 million on expenditures for capital outlay. This wish list 

document is important for a number of reasons; first to make sure we have identified all projects 

important to the community, taking a look at them and assessing their level of importance on the 

wish list. The total budgeted items on the wish list for FY15/16 is about 10 million. 

 

Staff’s job is to identity those projects important to the community while also addressing 

problems within the community so we have a working document where those issues are 

identified. The second step is to prioritize those projects. What are the A, B, and C priorities? It 



   Woodstock City Council 

   2/03/15 

   Page 7 of 9  
 
then falls on Council to decide A, B, C, priority, which helps staff at the next step. When we look 

at funding these projects we look at the A’s first, seeing how many of the A’s we can fund. If we 

can fund all of the A’s then we can look at the B’s. If we can’t fund all of the A’s we usually 

don’t get to the B’s. Mayor Sager mentioned that he would like the façade wall around the 

square, which is now labeled a C, to be higher than a C. Councilwoman Dillon suggested that the 

mural next to the movie theater, which is also a C priority, be moved up to a B. We are not 

authorizing funding tonight but it will be on the agenda, probably in April. We will be doing a 

TIF financial analysis, projecting how much money we will have in the pot, and deciding what 

the real priorities are. We are in this process now. CIP gets done a little later. We have a couple 

of weeks to see what Council says, helping staff to make as few changes in the budget as 

possible. 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Turner said this is a document that is projected five years out and evolves over 

time.  It is something that sets a pathway for us. We try to be strategic in trying to stage 

multiyear things that may occur. The date of the budget workshop is April 13, 2015. 

 

M. Saladin commented that Council likes to hear from the public. This document is available 

from the City and we encourage the public to participate in this discussion. The full packet is 

available on line with the list of priorities. 

 

RB Thompson said he would like to see work on the square completed. He spoke of the four 

corners, the capstones and the square lighting. He said he would like to see uniformity to the 

square so you have a sense of total integrity throughout the downtown which is the focus and 

core of the downtown district. It is where everyone wants to head if they are from out of town. 

He suggested that we get it finished and done and then work on other things beyond that outside 

of the square.  

 

He also mentioned the bump outs saying originally they were so gorgeous with the vegetation 

and selection of colors, however, now they look bad and need to be restored. Perhaps inviting a 

garden club in to take charge of them would be a way to save money and keep these looking 

good. We should try to make them perennial and able to endure the abuses of winter snow and 

plowing etc. He concluded by saying that the write up for the mural says a history of Woodstock. 

It should be a movie related history of Woodstock. 

 

The conversation turned to the abysmal bleacher situation at Woodstock High School. They are 

split, low, and not a good representation for the City. There is an area on Forest Ave, which is a 

one way street; there is a bump out to mid street so the bleachers could be built there creating a 

loss of 26 parking places. Since the school population has been reduced from 2,000 students to 

1,100 the parking is no longer an issue. We would have the district accommodated in being able 

to build bleachers backward into the street and get them more concentrated and elevated and still 

not interfere with traffic flow. Mayor Pro-Tem Turner asked staff to reach out to District 200 and 

get their opinion. He stated that he thinks it is a D200 issue, but since it does represent horribly 

for the City of Woodstock, it should be discussed. 

 

M. Larson commented that the she understands why for purposes of function, environment, 

maintenance, and budget the new lights that are around Stage Left make complete sense but she 



   Woodstock City Council 

   2/03/15 

   Page 8 of 9  
 
does not think they fit with the square. She said she realizes it’s a long term investment and 

wants to be sure the right look is achieved. She is aware of all the research and work already 

invested in this project but also feels that this look is contemporary and doesn’t fit. J. Starzynski 

said when you look at and compare the two sets one is less modern but he feels once they are all 

up it will be okay, and said that he thinks the Bell Tower looks great. M. Saladin said it is 

important to look at all alternatives but agrees that a uniform look will be totally different. 

 

Mayor Pro-TemTurner said that since it is still at a stage where it can be changed there should be 

discussion on the lights. R. Stelford said some investment has been made but if Council does not 

think this is the appropriate look for Woodstock then this is the time to make that adjustment 

before more money is spent. The existing system is falling apart and cannot be maintained, he 

thinks everyone on Council is okay with LED, it might just be a different look. 

 

John Scharres was asked to give his comments. He said that originally one section was put up 

and the general consensus was to continue. There have been a few negative comments along with 

some positive ones from the public. Some of the brightness will be fine in the long term since 

Benton and some of the streets are rather dark even with a street lamp. The lights will be put all 

around the buildings and the side streets.  During the holidays it’s going to add a lot in making 

the entire square visually brighter and look more cohesive.  

 

J. Scharres said the City is not completely committed at this point. We made some investment 

and did it in stages. There would be some going backward and it might take it back a season if 

there is some engineering involved to come up with something different with more spacing.  The 

current system just crumbles and is barely visible with serious wiring problems.  

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Turner urged council to take a second look to make sure they are comfortable 

with the direction the City is going in. If this is a key item he wants to encourage feedback on it 

so the square can be finished.  Everyone should take a last look before we make a final decision 

as we cannot take something down once it has been completed. In the last 18 months other 

products have come out so we are able to better adjust color. With council’s agreement and 
John’s expertise we should take a look at new products to see if there is a better option for the 

square.  

 

There were no additional comments. Mayor Pro-Tem Turner thanked R. Stelford and the 

department heads for their input on things, as well as John for his input on the lighting issue. 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  

A comment on the pavement evaluation throughout the city was mentioned. R. Stelford said a 

hired firm will evaluate pavement. Depending on the evaluation there are various options we are 

considering, and the management plan that we use. We are currently looking at three different 

management plans to see what cost vs value of output would be. The intention here is to have a 

five year plan so we are always on top of what has to be done, get ahead of the repairs needed, 

and know what we’re dealing with. 

  

The Chester Gould Proclamation is at the request of Tom Firak, the director of a documentary on 

Mr. Gould. He has requested to hold a screening in Woodstock on Feb. 22 aired on WTTW. He’s 



   Woodstock City Council 

   2/03/15 

   Page 9 of 9  
 
put together a documentary with his sons about Chester Gould, which obviously features a lot of 

Woodstock, since Mr. Gould lived and worked in the community for many years. He would like 

to hold a screening of this program. He approached the Opera House. Unfortunately, there will 

be renovations taking place in the auditorium that weekend. Staff has been working with him to 

see if we can get it in Stage Left Café. They will issue a press release and have a reception there 

for the public to view the 3 PM screening. It was suggested that the movie theater might be a 

better venue for the screening. Holding this at Stage Left is not definite at this time. This is still 

being worked on. 

  

M. Saladin asked if we need to discuss as a Council the businesses concerns about Rt 47 as 

IDOT rolls out plans.  He said he has been hearing concerns about the fear of roundabouts and 

the barriers. RB Thompson said some high school boys worked on how to educate the public 

concerning roundabouts. One of the members of the transportation commission, Mark Indyke, 

was anti Rt 47 improvements, specifically the median and roundabouts. RB said he is curious to 

see what his reaction is now since the boys have completed their project about roundabouts.   

 

R. Stelford said the City has been a conduit of information, partnering with the Chamber, hosting 

the RT 47 discussions that they have been having with the businesses that are being significantly 

impacted by IDOT’s decisions. He said the City did some outreach and found that they were 

unaware of these meetings, and got IDOT to do some outreach bringing the businesses up to 

speed on the project. He believes the City needs to stay actively involved and continue to have 

outreach measures inviting them to come to meetings and express their concerns. The major 

concern seems to be about the median and what the median will do to impact business. We 

talked to the lobbyist about the median. They suggested businesses check into other communities 

that have had medians installed to see if it is working or not. IDOT feels the median is very 

important to help with traffic flow throughout the City of Woodstock. Mayor Pro-Tem Turner 

asked R. Stelford to start formulating an information session about this topic and see when it 

could be held. 

 

Mayor Pro-Tem Turner said Council needs to do something to recognize Willis and Shirley 

Johnson’s efforts on behalf of the City. They took millions of dollars and put it into the 

downtown creating activities. As a business person I think they are citizens of Woodstock that 

deserves recognition. It is time for us to do something about this. This is something that Council 

needs to think about for future discussion. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion M. Larson, and second by RB Thompson, to adjourn the regular meeting of the 

Woodstock City Council to the February 17, 2015 City Council meeting. Ayes: M. Saladin, M. 

Larson, RB Thompson, J. Starzynski, and Mayor Pro-Tem Turner. Nays: None. Absentees: J. 

Dillon, Mayor Sager. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:35 P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

____________________ 

Arleen Quinn- City Clerk 



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   1
TIME: 15:26:02                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99754  D200 EDUCATION FOUNDATION      MEETING EXP ENSE                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT            500.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          500.00

  99755  A-1 TEXTILES & HOSPITALITY     BATH TOWELS                     RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             687.78
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          687.78

  99756  ADAMS BROS. GARAGE DOORS       REPAIR TO D OOR                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        110.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          110.00

  99757  ADCO SIGNS                     LETTER/STRI PE CONVERT TO K-9   POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             625.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          625.00

  99758  ALIBRIS INC                    BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    17.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           17.90

  99759  MONICA AMRAEN                  SENIORS SUP PLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY EVENTS               16.40
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           16.40

  99760  AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS          MEMBERSHIP                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR        600.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          600.00

  99761  AQUAFIX                        FOAM BUSTER                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        840.06
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          840.06

  99762  ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICE        UNIFORM REN TAL                 POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              25.57
                                        UNIFORM REN TAL SERVICES        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              25.57
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           51.14

  99763  ARARMARK                       UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         54.95
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         69.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          124.90

  99764  BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS           BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   411.26
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   525.70
                                        BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   642.33
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,579.29

  99765  BAKER & TAYLOR CONTINUATION    BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                     8.69
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            8.69



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   2
TIME: 15:26:04                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99766  BOTTS WELDING SERVICE          BEARINGS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        132.24
                                        T-BOLT CLAM P                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA          3.16
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          135.40

  99767  JUDITH BROWN                   RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             146.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          146.00

  99768  ROBERT BURG                    RECREATION INSTRUCTION         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           120.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          120.00

  99769  TARA CALABRESE                 RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             108.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          108.00

  99770  CENTEGRA OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH   POST OFFER DRUG SCREEN         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                25.00
                                        POST OFFER DRUG SCREENS        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES               125.00
                                        RANDOM CDL DRUG TESTING        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                45.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          195.00

  99771  CHICAGO TRIBUNE                NEWSPAPER S UBSCRIPTION         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           142.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          142.87

  99772  MICHAEL CISNER                 MEMBERSHP R EFUND               RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              55.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           55.00

  99773  COMMUNITY PLUMBING COMPANY     REPAIR SERV ICE RT 47           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        500.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          500.00

  99774  MICHAEL COMBS                  MEMBERSHIP REFUND              RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              30.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           30.00

  99775  CRESCENT ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO.   MATERIALS                      POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              35.14
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           35.14

  99776  DEMCO                          SUPPLIES                       PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   390.09
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          390.09

  99777  DIRECT FITNESS SOLUTIONS, LLC  FREIGHT ON PAID SERVICE INV    RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              15.00
                                        PARTS AND L ABOR                RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             323.00



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   3
TIME: 15:26:05                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99777  DIRECT FITNESS SOLUTIONS, LLC  PARTS AND L ABOR                RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             447.70
                                        PARTS AND L ABOR                RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             167.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          953.20

  99778  JULIE DOERR                    RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             140.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          140.00

  99779  TAMMY DUNN                     RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             175.00
                                        RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             272.00
                                        RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              70.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          517.00

  99780  ALAN DUNKER                    FUEL - TWEE N TUBING TRIP       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            17.52
                                        SUPPLIES FO R BULLITIN BOARDS   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION             9.28
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           26.80

  99781  ASHLEY ESUNIS                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              90.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           90.00

  99782  NICK FENTON                    RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           160.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          160.00

  99783  DEBBIE FIRAK                   BIG FISH CO NCERT               PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   200.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          200.00

  99784  JILL FLORES                    RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             144.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          144.00

  99785  FOX VALLEY FIRE & SAFETY CO.   REPLACE SER VER                 WIRELESS ALARM MONITORING / WIR ELESS ALARM MONI     17,616.00
                                        NEW RADIOS                     WIRELESS ALARM MONITORING / WIR ELESS ALARM MONI      4,233.60
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       21,849.60

  99786  NOAH DEHN FRANKLIN             RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            40.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           40.00

  99787  JAMES FRANKLIN                 OFFICIAL'S SERVICES            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           105.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          105.00



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   4
TIME: 15:26:06                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99788  ANNA FRIESEN                   RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             310.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          310.00

  99789  KARINA FUENTES                 FRIDAY FAMI LY FUN NIGHT        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           135.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          135.00

  99790  GALE                           BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   351.65
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          351.65

  99791  GESKE & SONS, INC.             2014 RESURF ACING PROJECT       TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI     59,896.43
                                        2014 RESURF ACING PROJECT       CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK     84,084.56
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL      143,980.99

  99792  MATTHEW GLICK                  RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            60.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           60.00

  99793  GRAINGER                       MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        175.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          175.50

  99794  TODD GRIGLIN                   RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           105.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          105.00

  99795  HACH COMPANY                   LAB SUPPLIE S                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        505.77
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          505.77

  99796  HAMPTON, LENZINI & RENWICK INC 2014 MAINTE NANCE PROGRAM       CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK      2,218.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,218.00

  99797  JACLYN HANSHAW                 RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             110.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          110.00

  99798  HD SUPPLY                      CLAMPS                         WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        284.48
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          284.48

  99799  TIM HICKS                      RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             360.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          360.00

  99800  IPM SYSTEMS INC                SENSOR                         WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        307.71
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          307.71



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   5
TIME: 15:26:06                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99801  DALE JANDRON                   OFFICIAL'S SERVICES            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            35.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           35.00

  99802  JOSH JANDRON                   RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            80.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           80.00

  99803  JOHN WHITE STABLES             HORSE BACK RIDING              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           500.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          500.00

  99804  ANITA JOHNSON                  RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             490.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          490.00

  99805  DON KAMPS                      RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            75.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           75.00

  99806  JANET KAYSER                   RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             225.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          225.00

  99807  SHIRLEY A. KOCH                RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             119.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          119.00

  99808  LEE JENSEN SALES CO            TRIGGER COV ER KIT              WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         98.48
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           98.48

  99809  NEVA E. LISS                   RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             306.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          306.00

  99810  M G MECHANICAL SERVICE         IGNITION MO DULE & WIRING HARNE AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   753.33
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          753.33

  99811  MC HENRY COUNTY DIVISION OF    PACE SERVIC ES-OCTOBER 2014     PARATRANSIT FUND / PARATRANSIT                       2,575.78
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,575.78

  99812  METRO PROFESSIONAL PRODUCTS, I SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             127.76
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          127.76

  99813  MIDAMERICA BOOKS               LIBRARY MAT ERIALS              PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   423.44
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          423.44



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   6
TIME: 15:26:07                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99814  MIDWEST TAPE                   LIBRARY MAT ERIALS              PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   581.65
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          581.65

  99815  MUZAK LLC                      SERVICES                       RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              97.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           97.87

  99816  NORTHEASTERN ILLINOIS          CONFERENCE REGISTRATION        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / ADMINISTRATION &         80.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           80.00

  99817  NORTHWEST HERALD               SUBSCRIPTIO N                   POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             203.80
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          203.80

  99818  MOLLY O'CONNOR                 RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             485.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          485.00

  99819  OVERDRIVE INC                  MATERIALS                      PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   337.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          337.95

  99820  JOSEFINA PALA                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             966.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          966.50

  99821  POOLBLU                        LABOR AND M ATERIALS            RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             260.58
                                        CHEMICALS                      RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             570.05
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          830.63

  99822  QUILL CORPORATION              SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             187.59
                                        SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             168.06
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          355.65

  99823  RAINBOW BOOK COMPANY           BOOKS                          PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                 1,463.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,463.87

  99824  CHERYL REIMER                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             127.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          127.50

  99825  ANGELA RUIZ                    RECREAITON INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             160.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          160.00



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   7
TIME: 15:26:07                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99826  JARED RITTER                   SCOREKEEPER                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            20.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           20.00

  99827  SECRETARY OF STATE             PARKING VIO LATION SUSPENSIONS  POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              30.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           30.00

  99828  COURTNEY SLINKO                LITTLE SPOR TSTARS              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           150.00
                                        YOUTH VOLLE YBALL               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           650.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          800.00

  99829  ONE ZERO CHARLIE PROD, INC.    TRIBUTE SER IES ADVANCE         ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                        10,000.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       10,000.00

  99830  TEI LANDMARK AUDIO             LIBRARY MAT ERIALS              PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                    28.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           28.00

  99831  THOMPSON ELEVATOR INSPECTION   INSPECTION SERVICES            POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             175.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          175.00

  99832  TODAY'S UNIFORMS               UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              47.85
                                        UNIFORMS                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       175.45
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        143.55
                                        UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              175.45
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          79.75
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         95.70
                                        COLLAR PINS                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              26.97
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          744.72

  99833  JULIE M TROPP                  RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             120.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          120.00

  99834  ULTRA STROBE COMMUNICATIONS    POLICE CAR CONVERSION          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE           1,650.00
                                        POLICE CAR CONVERSION          POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             240.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,890.25

  99835  USALCO                         LIQUID ALUM INUM SULFATE        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT      5,733.17
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,733.17



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   8
TIME: 15:26:08                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99836  UNITED LABORATORIES            ANTIBAC SOA P                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             244.77
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          244.77

  99837  VERSATILE COMPUTER SERVICES IN SERVICE                        PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   305.91
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          305.91

  99838  WAYNE'S LANES                  BOWLING CLA SS                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           360.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          360.00

  99839  DAN WIEGEL                     PAYROLL                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L                       120.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          120.00

  99840  WILL ENTERPRISES               2010 BASKET BALL JERSEYS        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION         1,884.80
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,884.80

  99841  JOSE M. ZAMORANO               SERVICE                        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             175.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          175.00

  99842  MATT ZINNEN                    RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           165.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          165.00

  99843  RYAN ZINNEN                    SCOREKEEPER                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            30.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           30.00

  99844  ZUKOWSKI, ROGERS, FLOOD &      APPLE CREEK  ESTATES- BOND INS  ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                         1,667.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,667.50

  99845  KATHLEEN ZANK                  RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             297.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          297.00

  99846  MARIA CAMPBELL                 RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             250.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          250.00

  99847  APPLIED CONCEPTS, INC.         POWER CABLE                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             110.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          110.00

  99848  AIRGAS                         LEASE RENEW AL                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               85.00
                                        LEASE RENEW AL                  PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        40.00



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:   9
TIME: 15:26:08                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99848  AIRGAS                         LEASE RENEW AL                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         40.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          165.00

  99849  AMSAN                          VACUUM AND SUPPLIES            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             540.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          540.50

  99850  ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICE        UNIFORM REN TAL SERVICES        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              58.96
                                        UNIFORM REN TAL SERVICES        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              25.57
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           84.53

  99851  ARARMARK                       UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              51.75
                                        UNIFORMS                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       139.75
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        107.50
                                        UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              139.75
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          53.75
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         64.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          557.00

  99852  ATLAS BOBCAT LLC               ALTERNATOR,  BRACKET            PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       284.62
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          284.62

  99853  BTM INDUSTRIES INC             REPAIR GATE  CONTROL SCREW      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        104.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          104.50

  99854  BOHN'S ACE HARDWARE            BATTERIES, POWER STRIP         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              35.47
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                7.99
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION                5.58
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              44.40
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT          2.31
                                        PARTS                          PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        25.92
                                        PIPE                           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               20.75
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         15.48
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT          7.70
                                        PLUMBING SU PPLIES              WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         14.97
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT          5.49
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         36.22
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              12.99
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS RETURNED    RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             -12.99



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  10
TIME: 15:26:08                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99854  BOHN'S ACE HARDWARE            DOOR REPAIR  PARTS              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                       7.28
                                        SUPPLIES/MA TERIALS             POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION               2.49
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          232.05

  99855  BOTTS WELDING SERVICE          PUMP PARTS                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               16.50
                                        BRAKE CHAMB ER                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               55.48
                                        BEARING                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               35.95
                                        DIESEL ADDI TIVE                PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        15.94
                                        REPLACE LEF T REAR SPRING ASSEM GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREETS DIVISION              648.30
                                        PARTS                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              209.41
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          981.58

  99856  BROWNELLS, INC.                SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             189.55
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          189.55

  99857  JUDITH BROWN                   RECREATION INSTRUCTION         RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             151.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          151.00

  99858  BUSS FORD                      BRAKE PADS,  ROTORS             POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             188.76
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          188.76

  99859  CALL ONE                       PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT             58.73
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT            193.15
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                57.44
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D         58.73
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR        892.68
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            48.03
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             140.89
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION           4,612.64
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     197.06
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                   140.89
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT       2,221.55
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        185.02
                                        PHONE CHARG ES                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        485.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        9,292.31

  99860  CARQUEST AUTO PARTS STORES     FILTERS                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              136.70
                                        HOSE                           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT          7.69



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  11
TIME: 15:26:08                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99860  CARQUEST AUTO PARTS STORES     RETURN CRED IT                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              -29.38
                                        RAD HOSES, HEADLIGHT BULBS     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         55.27
                                        BRAKE FLUID , BRAKE WASHER      POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              11.84
                                        BLOWER MOTO R AND WHEEL         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            51.59
                                        AIR FILTER,  TAILGATE HANDLE    WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          18.84
                                        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               62.74
                                        FUEL FILTER                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        19.08
                                        BLOWER MOTO R RESISTOR          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               40.93
                                        WIPERS, WAS HER FLUID           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D        241.17
                                        WIPERS, WAS HER FLUID           PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        75.00
                                        WIPERS, WAS HER FLUID           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         50.00
                                        WIPERS, WAS HER FLUID           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          50.00
                                        WIPERS, WAS HER FLUID           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         50.00
                                        FITTINGS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               28.65
                                        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              121.92
                                        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               65.50
                                        BULBS                          POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              97.96
                                        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               54.99
                                        MATERIALS                      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        20.00
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         20.00
                                        BRAKE CLEAN ER                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               29.72
                                        BRAKE CLEAN ER                  PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                         5.00
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA          5.00
                                        AIR FILTER                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              18.36
                                        BELTS, PULL EY                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               62.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,371.44

  99861  CENTEGRA OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH   DRUG TESTIN G                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                25.00
                                        DRUG TESTIN G SERVICE           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                25.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

  99862  CHICAGO COFFEE ROASTERY, INC.  CAFE SUPPLI ES                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                             87.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           87.50

  99863  CITY ELECTRIC SUPPLY           PARTS                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              26.10
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           26.10

  99864  CITY LIMITS SYSTEMS INC        CHEMICALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             243.40



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  12
TIME: 15:26:08                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99864  CITY LIMITS SYSTEMS INC        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              150.00
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         99.45
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          492.85

  99865  COMMUNITY PLUMBING COMPANY     PRESSURE WA SHER REPAIR         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             101.88
                                        LABOR                          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              13.95
                                        MATERIALS                      RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              50.00
                                        TOILET REPA IRS @ PW            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             103.00
                                        TOILET REPA IR @ PW             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             102.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          371.33

  99866  COMMONWEALTH EDISON            UTILITY SER VICES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        250.28
                                        UTILITY SER VICES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               41.03
                                        ELECTRIC AG REGATION            ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                           387.00
                                        UTILITY SER VICES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               67.92
                                        UTILITY SER VICES               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       205.76
                                        UTILITY SER VICES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               63.68
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,015.67

  99867  COMMONWEALTH EDISON            UTILITY SVC S- STREET LIGHTING  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION            1,500.48
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,500.48

  99868  CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION            5,273.72
                                        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      1,085.93
                                        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        307.70
                                        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        339.41
                                        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        224.78
                                        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         49.39
                                        ELECTRIC SE RVICE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        249.44
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        7,530.37

  99869  THE COPY EXPRESS, INC.         PRINTING SE RVICES              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            19.37
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           19.37

  99870  CORKSCREW GYMNASTICS AND SPORT RECREATION INSTRUCTION         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           800.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          800.00

  99871  DAHM ENTERPRISES INC           SLUDGE REMO VAL                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT      4,800.00



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  13
TIME: 15:26:09                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99871  DAHM ENTERPRISES INC           SLUDGE DISP OSAL                WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT      5,395.20
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       10,195.20

  99872  DIRECT FITNESS SOLUTIONS, LLC  PARTS                          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             249.70
                                        LABOR                          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             125.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          374.70

  99873  ALAN DUNKER                    POOL SUPPLI ES                  RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER               7.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            7.99

  99874  FOX LAKE POLICE ASSOCIATION    TRAINING                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              60.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           60.00

  99875  DAVID G. ETERNO                PROFESSIONA L SERVICES          ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUDICATION / A DMINISTRATIVE AD        412.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          412.50

  99876  NICK FENTON                    RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           130.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          130.00

  99877  FOX VALLEY OPERATORS           MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL - A. GEORGE WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / ADMINISTRATION &        100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

  99878  KYLE FRANKLIN                  SCOREKEEPER                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            40.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           40.00

  99879  SYNCHRONY BANK                 UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        253.95
                                        MATERIALS                      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        22.96
                                        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               42.04
                                        UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             104.98
                                        UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              318.89
                                        MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              14.97
                                        UNIFORMS                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        79.98
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          837.77

  99880  GESKE & SONS, INC.             POLYMER PAT CH                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION            6,272.55
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        6,272.55

  99881  MATTHEW GLICK                  RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            60.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           60.00



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  14
TIME: 15:26:09                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99882  GRAINGER                       MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         35.84
                                        MATERIALS                      PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      96.30
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          132.14

  99883  TODD GRIGLIN                   RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           105.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          105.00

  99884  H R GREEN                      WWTP BLOWER  UPGRADE            WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER/SEWER CAPI      1,700.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,700.00

  99885  HACH COMPANY                   CHEMICALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        445.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          445.75

  99886  HAMPTON, LENZINI & RENWICK INC WALNUT RIDG E APARTMENTS        ESCROW FUND / ESCROW ACCOUNT                           911.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          911.00

  99887  HD SUPPLY                      MATERAILS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        219.66
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        114.45
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          334.11

  99888  CHAS. HERDRICH & SON, INC.     SUPPLIES                       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                             66.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           66.50

  99889  HERITAGE CRYSTAL CLEAN INC     COOLENT                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              189.75
                                        COOLENT                        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        35.00
                                        COOLENT                        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         25.00
                                        COOLENT                        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         25.00
                                        COOLENT                        WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          25.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          299.75

  99890  JOHN HOCKERSMITH               RECREATION INSTRUCTOR          RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             210.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          210.00

  99891  HOME STATE BANK                EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERAL                    59,791.29
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION          59,925.37
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   819.80
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             819.80
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                    12,364.04



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  15
TIME: 15:26:09                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99891  HOME STATE BANK                EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                   6,182.02
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND / PUBLIC LI BRARY                10,724.44
                                        EMPLOYEE HE ALTH CONTRIBUTION   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER & SEWER        18,922.44
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL      169,549.20

  99892  HYDROTEX                       BULK GREASE                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION            1,174.34
                                        BULK GREASE                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       200.00
                                        BULK GREASE                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,474.34

  99893  ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF         TRAFFIC CON TROL SERVICE        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION            3,659.40
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,659.40

  99894  ILLINOIS SECTION AMERICAN      CONFERENCE FEES                WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / ADMINISTRATION &        144.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          144.00

  99895  ILLINOIS PUBLIC WORKS MUTUAL   2015 MEMBER SHIP DUES           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR        250.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          250.00

  99896  IN THE SWIM                    POOL SUPPLI ES                  RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             389.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          389.87

  99897  INTERSTATE BATTERY             MATERAILS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         35.96
                                        BATTERIES                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        256.35
                                        BATTERIES                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              320.95
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          613.26

  99898  INTERTRADE USA COMPANY         CAFE SUPPLI ES                  PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                            608.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          608.00

  99899  DALE JANDRON                   OFFICIAL'S SERVICES            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            70.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           70.00

  99900  DON KAMPS                      RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           170.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          170.00

  99901  LEAGUE OF HISTORIC AMERICAN    MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL             PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     500.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          500.00



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  16
TIME: 15:26:09                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99902  SALLY R. LESCHER               INSTRUCTOR CONTRACT            RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             117.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          117.00

  99903  LIONHEART CRITICAL POWER       PROFESSIONA L SERVICES          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        630.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          630.75

  99904  MARATHON HYDRAULIC MOTORS      WING PLOW R EPAIR               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              375.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          375.00

  99905  MC HENRY COUNTY DIVISION OF    PACE SERVIC ES - NOVEMBER 2014  PARATRANSIT FUND / PARATRANSIT                       2,264.68
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,264.68

  99906  MENARDS                        PINS                           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               11.96
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               49.02
                                        TIMER, LIGH TS                  WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         59.13
                                        PIPES                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             204.37
                                        PIPES                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              50.70
                                        SUMP PUMP                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        124.00
                                        TOILET LEVE R AT PW             GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE               7.99
                                        PAINTING SU PPLIES AT CH        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                      27.29
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        262.45
                                        CITY HALL S TAIRWELL PAINT      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                      47.91
                                        CITY HALL P LASTER REPAIR       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                      11.91
                                        SHOP AIR HO SE REPLACEMENT      PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        21.99
                                        WALL PATCHI NG @ CITY HALL      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                       6.97
                                        ELEC TO RAD IO ROOM             RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              29.09
                                        FIX SOCCER GOAL                RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              14.11
                                        CITY HALL W ALL REPAIRS         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                       6.97
                                        SHOP TOOLS AND SUPPLIES        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        31.90
                                        CABINET HAR DWARE               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         25.46
                                        CLEANING & LAUNDRY SUPPLIES    PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      15.45
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              35.61
                                        CITY HALL R EPAIR SUPPLIES      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                       3.37
                                        CABLE CLAMP                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA          9.98
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              49.10
                                        MATERIALS &  SUPPLIES           RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER              18.84
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,125.57



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  17
TIME: 15:26:09                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99907  MILLER ENGINEERING CO.         HEAT EXCHAN GERS                POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION           4,970.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        4,970.00

  99908  MINUTEMAN/POWERBOSS            SWEEPER                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              343.51
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          343.51

  99909  MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT         LED BRAKE/T URN TAIL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              675.28
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          675.28

  99910  NISRA                          MEETING EXP ENSE                SPECIAL RECREATION FUND / SPECI AL RECREATION           105.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          105.00

  99911  JOYCE A NARDULLI LLC           RETAINER FE E- FEB 2015         CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK      5,000.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,000.00

  99912  NICOR                          UTILITY-GAS                     RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER           1,336.31
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        30.00
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         46.46
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         27.37
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         80.60
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                    50.41
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         87.17
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        130.88
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     AQUATIC CENTER FUND / AQUATIC C ENTER                   119.05
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         28.05
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         31.47
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT      1,161.53
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         28.69
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         23.82
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         25.24
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         27.54
                                        UTILITY-GAS                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        232.84
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,467.43

  99913  NORTHERN KEY & LOCK, INC.      RESET 3 EXI T BARS              RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             265.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          265.00

  99914  OFFICE DEPOT                   SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               54.00



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  18
TIME: 15:26:09                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99914  OFFICE DEPOT                   SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               71.45
                                        RETURNED SU PPLIES              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              -32.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           92.46

  99915  OPP. FRANCHISING, INC.         COURTHOUSE CLEANING            TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI        125.00
                                        FEBRUARY 20 15 CLEANING SERVICE RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER           1,507.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,632.00

  99916  PATRIOT DOOR SOLUTIONS         DOOR REPAIR  @ TRAIN STATION    GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                     520.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          520.00

  99917  P. F. PETTIBONE & COMPANY      PRINTING SE RVICES              POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             441.20
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          441.20

  99918  PRECISION SERVICES & PARTS,    LEFT FRONT CALIPER             POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              79.41
                                        BRAKE SWITC H                   PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        22.02
                                        STARTER                        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             277.95
                                        PARTS                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR        242.95
                                        PARTS                          POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             325.40
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          947.73

  99919  PRO-VISION                     IN CAR CAME RAS                 CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / PUBLIC SAFETY         2,154.94
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,154.94

  99920  QUILL CORPORATION              SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              49.99
                                        INK CARTIDG ES                  GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         26.09
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT             19.51
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT            121.20
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                19.51
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D         19.51
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         19.52
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            19.52
                                        SUPPLIES                       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      19.52
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT             14.05
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT             14.05
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / HUMAN RESOURCES                14.05
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D         14.05
                                        SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR         14.05



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  19
TIME: 15:26:09                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99920  QUILL CORPORATION              SUPPLIES                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            14.05
                                        SUPPLIES                       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      14.05
                                        SUPPLIES                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / ADMINISTRATION &          9.05
                                        SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION              22.99
                                        SUPPLIES                       POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION               3.59
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          448.35

  99921  REICHERT CHEVROLET & OLDS      HOSE                           WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         24.04
                                        EGR COOLER AND GASKETS         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              648.47
                                        EGR VALVE                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              227.71
                                        DOOR HATCH,  TAILGATE LATCHES   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         348.24
                                        GASKETS                        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               25.03
                                        VALVE                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              231.13
                                        WIPER TRANS                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              118.03
                                        P/S PUMP                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              242.37
                                        FUEL RAIL P RESSURE SENSOR      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT         201.93
                                        SENSOR REPL ACED                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              381.47
                                        VEHICLE REP AIR                 WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        543.28
                                        CABLE, PANE L                   GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              477.77
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        3,469.47

  99922  JASON ROBISON                  RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           105.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          105.00

  99923  RUSH TRUCK CENTER - HUNTLEY    WATER PUMPS                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              356.44
                                        TURBO LINE                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               59.64
                                        TURBO & MOU NTING KIT, OIL DRAW GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION            1,832.82
                                        MANIFORD, B OLTS                GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              451.66
                                        GASKET                         GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               93.61
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,794.17

  99924  JARED RITTER                   SCOREKEEPER                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            50.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           50.00

  99925  SAMS CLUB                      SUPPLIES                       PERFORMING ARTS FUND / CAFE                             93.63
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           93.63

  99926  RORY SCHNEIDER                 TOOLS                          WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         80.00



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  20
TIME: 15:26:10                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99926  RORY SCHNEIDER                 LIGHT                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              39.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          119.99

  99927  SCHMIDT PRINTING               ARREST PACK ET ENVELOPES        POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION             162.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          162.00

  99928  SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO            PAINT                          GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              242.33
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          242.33

  99929  COURTNEY SLINKO                YOUTH VOLLE YBALL               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           650.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          650.00

  99930  SNI SOLUTIONS                  DE ICER                        ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND /  ENVIRONMENTAL M      2,837.57
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        2,837.57

  99931  SUBURBAN LABORATORIES          OUTSIDE TES TING                WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        582.00
                                        OUTSIDE TES TING                WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        602.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,184.00

  99932  TEMPLE DISPLAY LTD             CHRISTMAS L IGHTING MAINTENANCE GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUNITY EVENTS           20,400.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       20,400.00

  99933  TICKET RETURN SOFTWARE         ONLINE SING LE TICKET SALES FEE DEBT SERVICE FUND / DEBT SERVIC E                       573.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          573.00

  99934  TRANS UNION RISK & ALTERNATIVE SEARCH FEES                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION               1.00
                                        SEARCH FEES                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION               6.50
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            7.50

  99935  TODAY'S UNIFORMS               UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              47.85
                                        UNIFORMS                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       159.50
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        159.50
                                        UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              175.45
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          79.75
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         95.70
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         45.95
                                        UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE              47.85
                                        UNIFORMS                       PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       175.45



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  21
TIME: 15:26:10                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99935  TODAY'S UNIFORMS               UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA        143.55
                                        UNIFORMS                       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              175.45
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / WATER TREATMENT          79.75
                                        UNIFORMS                       WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT         95.70
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,481.45

  99936  UNIVERSAL PUBLICATIONS         MOTEL DIREC TORY ADVERTISING    PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                     150.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          150.00

  99937  UNITED LABORATORIES            MATERIALS                      GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION              269.09
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          269.09

  99938  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE          SHIPPING SE RVICES              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FINANC E DEPARTMENT            121.63
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          121.63

  99939  VALLEY AGGREGATES, LTD         LEAF DISPOS AL                  ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND /  ENVIRONMENTAL M     10,017.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       10,017.00

  99940  JEFFREY VAN LANDUYT            SNOWPLOWERS  MEAL               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / PUBLIC  WORKS ADMINISTR        147.25
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          147.25

  99941  VILLAGE OF BULL VALLEY         2014 CONTRY  CLUB ROAD PROJECT  CAPITAL IMP. GEN. CORP. FUND / STREETS/SIDEWALK      5,328.31
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        5,328.31

  99942  WATER RESOURCES, INC.          WATER METER S                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      2,000.00
                                        WATER METER S                   WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA      2,005.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        4,005.00

  99943  WILL ENTERPRISES               YOUTH SWEAT SHIRTS              GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           341.70
                                        YOUTH SWEAT SHIRTS              RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             300.00
                                        2010 BASKET BALL JERSEYS        GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           217.87
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          859.57

  99944  WOODSTOCK AUTO TRIM            REPAIR JACK ETS                 PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        20.00
                                        REPAIR JACK ETS                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               60.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL           80.00

  99945  WOODSTOCK CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  GIFT CARDS                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           300.00



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  22
TIME: 15:26:10                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99945  WOODSTOCK CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  GIFT CARDS                     RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             325.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          625.00

  99946  CITY OF WOODSTOCK              WATER/SEWER                     WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWAGE TREATMENT        101.40
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          101.40

  99947  WOODSTOCK COMMUNITY SCHOOL     GASOLINE US AGE                 POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION           6,412.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        6,412.90

  99948  WOODSTOCK COMMUNITY SCHOOL     GASOLINE US AGE                 PERFORMING ARTS FUND / OPERA HO USE                      56.94
                                        GASOLINE US AGE                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D        277.16
                                        GASOLINE US AGE                 GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION            55.90
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          390.00

  99949  WOODSTOCK HICKSGAS, INC.       EMRICSON PA RK SHOP HEAT        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       507.60
                                        EMRICSON PA RK SHOP HEAT        PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       394.17
                                        SHED @ EMRI CSON                PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       318.65
                                        SHED @ EMRI CSON                PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       388.56
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,608.98

  99950  WOODSTOCK LUMBER COMPANY       LATCH FOR C ITY HALL DOOR       GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / CITY H ALL                       4.78
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL            4.78

  99951  WOODSTOCK POWER EQUIPMENT, INC PARTS                          PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                         8.25
                                        KUBOTA PART S                   PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                     1,501.00
                                        PARTS                          PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                       314.92
                                        MATERIALS                      WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         80.70
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,904.87

  99952  YOUNG MASTERS MARTIAL ARTS     ROOM RENTAL                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           480.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          480.00

  99953  JOSE M. ZAMORANO               SERVICE                        RECREATION CENTER FUND / RECREA TION CENTER             170.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          170.00

  99954  ZEE MEDICAL SERVICES           MEDICAL SUP PLIES               PUBLIC PARKS FUND / PUBLIC PARK S                        47.03
                                        MEDICAL SUP PLIES               WATER AND SEWER UTILITY FUND / SEWER & WATER MA         47.04
                                        MEDICAL SUP PLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / STREET S DIVISION               47.04



DATE: 02/09/15                                           CITY OF WOODSTOCK                                                 PAGE:  23
TIME: 15:26:10                                         WARRANT NUMBER 003651
ID: AP490000.WOW

                                               FROM  CHECK #  99754 TO CHECK #  99957

CHECK #  VENDOR NAME                    TRANSACTION  DESCRIPTION        FUND / DEPARTMENT CHARGED                              AMOUNT
--------------------------------------------------- --------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------
  99954  ZEE MEDICAL SERVICES           MEDICAL SUP PLIES               GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / FLEET MAINTENANCE             379.99
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          521.10

  99955  MATT ZINNEN                    RECREATION OFFICIAL            GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / RECREA TION DIVISION           100.00
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL          100.00

  99956  ZUKOWSKI, ROGERS, FLOOD &      LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / COMMUN ITY & ECONOMIC D      1,031.25
                                        LEGAL FEES                     ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUDICATION / A DMINISTRATIVE AD      1,155.00
                                        LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT          3,465.00
                                        LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT          1,443.75
                                        LEGAL FEES                     GENERAL CORPORATE FUND / GENERA L GOVERNMENT            660.00
                                        LEGAL FEES                     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION           5,974.00
                                        ANNUAL TIF REPORT              TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUND / TAX INCREMENT FI        123.75
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL       13,852.75

  99957  DIRECTOR OF THE ILLINOIS STATE POLICE FINE S CASH RECEIVED     POLICE PROTECTION FUND / POLICE  PROTECTION           1,116.10
                                                                                                         CHECK TOTAL        1,116.10

                                                                                                       WARRANT TOTAL      550,969.97









































































 

 

       City of    

               
 

Offi ce  of  the May or                                                            815 .338 .4302  

Dr .  Br ian  Sager ,  Mayo r                                                            815 .334 .2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                                                              mayo r@woods tocki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                            www.woodsto cki l . go v  

 

 

DATE:  February 11, 2015 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

     

FROM: Cindy Smiley, Executive Assistant 

 

RE:  Request for Class E-3 Liquor License 

Studio 2015 Design, Inc. d/b/a Facets  

11671 Catalpa Lane 

 

Ches Dougherty and Tom Dougherty will appear before the City Council on February 17, 2015, 

to request creation of a Class E-3 (No Restaurant/No Bar/Consumption of Beer & Wine Only) 

liquor license for their new business, Studio 2015 Design Inc. d/b/a Facets located at 11671 

Catalpa Lane.  As I am sure you are aware, the Doughertys also own and operate Studio 2015 

which is located next door at 11701 Catalpa Lane.  Facets has been established as a completely 

separate corporation/business occupying a separate tenant space.  A Class E-3 License permits 

the licensee to serve beer and wine for consumption or use on the licensed premises maintaining 

no barroom, tavern, lounge, or other area reserved exclusively for the retail sale of beer and wine 

on said premises.   

 

Facets is an event venue which has already hosted a variety of public and private events, 

including fundraisers, wedding receptions, etc.  In response to clients’ requests, the Doughertys 

have applied to obtain a liquor license so that alcohol may be sold and served at these events.    

 

In the Mayor’s absence and with his approval, Mr. Ches Dougherty, Manager, met with City 

Manager Stelford to discuss the rules and regulations applicable to a Class E-3 liquor license.   

 

Attached for your information is a copy of the liquor license application for Facets LLC.  The 

applicant has submitted the required information including an executed lease agreement for the 

property and Articles of Incorporation.  They will be required to submit a Certificate of 

Insurance and complete the fingerprinting process prior to liquor license issuance. 

 

Based upon a review of the documentation, the Mayor forwards his positive recommendation for 

Council’s consideration. 

 

If Council is supportive of this request, approval is recommended for the attached 

ordinance, identified as Document No. ______________, An Ordinance Amending Section 

3.3.6, Classification of Licenses; Number and Fees of the Woodstock City Code which would 

increase the number of Class E3 liquor licenses for Studio 2015 Design Inc. d/b/a Facets. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text
1

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 17, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 40a







  

 

 

Liquor Control Amendments, Page 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-O-_________ 

 

An Ordinance Amending Title 3,  

Chapter 3, Liquor Control, of the Woodstock City Code 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED by the CITY COUNCIL of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

SECTION ONE: That Section 3.3.6, Classification of Licenses; Number and 

Fees, of the Woodstock City Code shall be amended to increase the number of Class E-3 liquor 

licenses by one (Facets) so that the total authorized number of liquor licenses in the City shall be 

as follows: 

 

C. Number and Fees:  The following number of licenses and license fees shall be charged 

for each liquor license classification: 

 

Class Number 

Available 

Fee Effective 

May 1, 2011 

A-1 6 $2,000.00 

A-2 11 $1,500.00 

A-4 1 $1,500.00 

A-5 0 $1,000.00 

A-6 4 $1,600.00 

A-7 0 $1,800.00 

B-1 2 $2,000.00 

B-2 4 $1,200.00 

B-3 5 $1,500.00 

B-4a 0 $1,100.00 

B-4b 0 $1,200.00 

B-4c 1 $1,300.00 

B-5 0 $1,500.00 

B-6 1 $1,200.00 

B-7 0 $1,200.00 

B-8 1 $   600.00 

B-9 0 $   600.00 

C-1 1 $1,200.00 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.1



  

 

 

Liquor Control Amendments, Page 2 

C-2 1 $   800.00 

D 4 $1,200.00 

E-1 5 $   600.00 

E-2 0 $   700.00 

E-3 2 $   500.00 

E-4 1 $1,200.00 

H 0 $1,600.00 

I 0 $   800.00 

J 0 $   800.00 

K   

KK 0 $   800.00 

L  $   800.00 

M-1  $   150.00 per day 

M-2  $    50.00 one day 

$  100.00 2-29 days 

$  150.00 30-60 days 

N  $    50.00 per day 

 

 SECTION TWO: If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of 

this Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgment shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which remainder 

shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

 SECTION THREE: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

 SECTION FOUR: This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance     and 

shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and publication in pamphlet form 

(which publication is hereby authorized) as provided by law. 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 APPROVED: 

 

       

            

 Michael Turner, Mayor Pro Tem 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST:      

Arleen Quinn, City Clerk 

 

Passed:      

Approved:      

Published:      



  

 

 

Liquor Control Amendments, Page 3 

 

 

 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 
 

 I, ARLEEN QUINN, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, acting and qualified 

Clerk of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, and that as such Clerk, I am the 

keeper of the records and minutes and proceedings of the Mayor and Council members of said 

City. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council, held 

on the    day of     , 2015, the foregoing Ordinance entitled An 

Ordinance Amending Title 3, Chapter 3, Liquor Control, of the Woodstock City Code, was 

duly passed by said City Council. 

 

 The pamphlet form of Ordinance No. 15-O-____, including the Ordinance and a cover 

sheet thereof, was prepared, and a copy of such Ordinance was posted in the City Hall, 

commencing on the _______ day of ____________, 2015, and continuing for at least 10 days 

thereafter. Copies of such Ordinance were also available for public inspection upon request in 

the office of the City Clerk. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct copy, is 

entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful custodian and 

keeper of the same. 

 

 GIVEN under my hand and corporate seal of the City of Woodstock this    day of 

    , 2015. 

 

 

     

Arleen Quinn, City Clerk 

City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 



       City of    

               
 

City Manager’s Off ice                                                121  W.  Calhoun  St reet   

Terry Wil lcockson                                           Woodstock,  I l l ino is  60098  

Grant  Wri ter                                                                                            815/338-4300  ext .  11128                               

                                                                                                                       fax 815/33 4-2269  

                                                                                                       gran twri ter@woodstocki l .gov       

                                                                                                                 www.woodstocki l .gov  

Memo 

To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

From: Terry Willcockson, Grant Writer 

Date: February 10, 2015 

Re: Consideration of a Resolution for CDBG Submittal for the Walnut/Ash Neighborhood 

Stormwater Management Project 

The attached Resolution to approve Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding Request for 

Walnut/Ash Neighborhood Stormwater Management Project is respectfully submitted for City Council’s 

consideration and approval. 

 

CDBG funds are made available through the federal Housing & Urban Development (HUD) program, 

and administered to local agencies through McHenry County’s Planning & Development Department, 

with stringent application guidelines and reporting requirements.  Last year, the City was awarded CDBG 

funds in the amount of $65,000 to assist with essential roof repairs and redesign at the Woodstock Public 

Library and that project is currently underway. 

 

Priority objectives for McHenry County in determining funds awarded for 2015 include infrastructure 

projects, such as those to mitigate stormwater issues, in census tracts with low/mod income populations 

exceeding 37.12%.  Included in Public Works’ CIP are two such projects to replace deteriorated and 

ineffective stormwater service lines.  As the characteristics of each project directly match CDBG 

objectives, McHenry County Planning & Development has encouraged the City to apply for both 

projects.  Each project must be submitted as a separate CDBG application.  Should adequate funding not 

be allocated to either project, the City may choose to decline the award and implement the projects as 

available budgets allow. 

 

The Walnut/Ash Neighborhood project will bring relief from flooding and sewer backups in census tract 

870402.2, an area of small, older single-family homes with an LMI population of 50.85%.  

Approximately 30 homes experience direct damage to yards and residences during high rain events in 

this area.  Following a major rain event in 2007, engineering was ordered and will only need updating for 

this project to begin.  However, due to the project’s overall cost, almost $900,000, work must necessarily 

be phased over a period of years, with noticeable improvement not felt until the project’s completion. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 17, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 40b



The guidelines for CDBG participation require a leverage of at least 10% of the total project 

budget, with higher amounts receiving beneficial consideration; due to the amount of 

construction involved in the Walnut/Ash project, the project will be phased over a minimum 

three-year period.  It is not unusual for CDBG funds to be used to facilitate a project of this 

scope, and application will continue each year to request additional funding support.  Although 

not guaranteed, such continuing projects, if approved, become funding priorities in subsequent 

years to ensure the project’s successful completion.  For Phase I, the City therefore commits 

funds in the amount of $60,000, with a grant request of $240,000, and an estimated first year 

budget of $300,000.   

 

It is recommended that the attached Resolution, identified as Document No. _____, “A 

Resolution Authorizing Application to the 2015 Community Development Block Grant 

Program through McHenry County for the Walnut/Ash Neighborhood Stormwater 

Management Project” be approved. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
2



RESOLUTION NO. 15-R-_____ 

 

CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

MC HENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

A Resolution Authorizing Application to the  

2015 Community Development Block Grant Program through McHenry County  

for the Walnut/Ash Neighborhood Stormwater Management Project 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock desires to undertake the Walnut/Ash Neighborhood 

Stormwater Management Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock desires to apply to the Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) Program through McHenry County for a grant for the purpose of 

carrying out this project; and 

 

WHEREAS, City Manager Roscoe Stelford has the authority to submit a CDBG 

application for federal funding and to enter into a contract with McHenry County for 

funding award, 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Woodstock City Council hereby 

approves this project and authorizes application to the CDBG Program through McHenry 

County in the amount of $240,000 for the Walnut/Ash Neighborhood Stormwater 

Management Project. 

 

Passed and approved this 17
th
 day of February, 2015. 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

(SEAL)    APPROVED: 

     ______________________________ 

     Mayor Pro Tem Michael Turner 

 

ATTEST: _________________________________ 

  City Clerk Arleen Quinn 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.2



       City of    

               
 

City Manager’s Off ice                                                121  W.  Calhoun  St reet   

Terry Wil lcockson                                           Woodstock,  I l l ino is  60098  

Grant  Wri ter                                                                                            815/338-4300  ext .  11128                               

                                                                                                                       fax 815/33 4-2269  

                                                                                                       gran twri ter@woodstocki l .gov       

                                                                                                                 www.woodstocki l .gov  

Memo 

To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

From: Terry Willcockson, Grant Writer 

Date: February 10, 2015 

Re: Consideration of a Resolution for CDBG Submittal for the Zimmerman Road Stormwater 

Management Project 

The attached Resolution to approve a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding Request 

for the Zimmerman Road Stormwater Management Project is respectfully submitted for City Council’s 

consideration and approval. 

 

CDBG funds are made available through the federal Housing & Urban Development (HUD) program, 

and administered to local agencies through McHenry County’s Planning & Development Department, 

with stringent application guidelines and reporting requirements.  Last year, the City was awarded CDBG 

funds in the amount of $65,000 to assist with essential roof repairs and redesign at Woodstock Public 

Library and that project is currently underway. 

 

Priority objectives for McHenry County in determining funds awarded for 2015 include infrastructure 

projects, such as those to mitigate stormwater issues, in census tracts with low/mod income populations 

exceeding 37.12%.  Included in Public Works’ CIP are two such projects to replace deteriorated and 

ineffective stormwater service lines.  As the characteristics of each project directly match CDBG 

objectives, McHenry County Planning & Development has encouraged the City to apply for both 

projects.  Each project must be submitted as a separate CDBG application.  Should adequate funding not 

be allocated to either project, the City may choose to decline the award and implement the projects as 

available budgets allow. 

 

The Zimmerman Road project will resolve frequent flooding concerns in census tract 870905.1, an area 

with 56.10% LMI population, along the highly-traveled Zimmerman Road corridor on the City’s south 

eastern boundary.  The storm sewer servicing this area was constructed a long time ago and it extends 

through an adjacent private rural residential property.  This property is currently outside the City limits 

and without a dedicated maintenance/access easement, no repairs have been made.  The property owner 

is supportive of repairing or replacing the existing failed storm sewer, and has indicated a willingness to 

grant an easement across the property for future maintenance.  The storm sewer will reduce ongoing 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 17, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 40c



flooding concerns which have extended into the nearby apartment complex and as far south as the 

intersection of McConnell Road and Route 47.   

 

This throughway is the access road to one of Woodstock’s largest apartment complexes, Prairie View 

Apartments, where storm sewer backups and other complaints have also occurred.  In addition to benefits 

for this area’s residents, Zimmerman Road is a popular alternate route, leading directly to both the 

Woodstock Post Office and the McHenry County Fairgrounds, and is frequently used by travelers to 

avoid excessive congestion along Route 47.  Frequent flooding in this area therefore negatively impacts a 

wide variety of both residents and visitors, including traffic to industrial businesses along McConnell 

Road. 

 

The guidelines for CDBG participation require a leverage of at least 10% of the project budget, 

with higher amounts receiving beneficial consideration; the City therefore commits funds in the 

amount of $45,000, with a grant request of $180,000, and an estimated total budget of $225,000.   

 

It is recommended that the attached Resolution, identified as Document No. _____, “A 

Resolution Authorizing Application to the 2015 Community Development Block Grant 

Program through McHenry County for the Zimmerman Road Stormwater Management 

Project” be approved. 
 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
3



RESOLUTION NO. 15-R-_____ 

 

CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

MC HENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

A Resolution Authorizing Application to the  

2015 Community Development Block Grant Program through McHenry County  

for the Zimmerman Road Stormwater Management Project 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock desires to undertake the Zimmerman Road 

Stormwater Management Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock desires to apply to the Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) Program through McHenry County for a grant for the purpose of 

carrying out this project; and 

 

WHEREAS, City Manager Roscoe Stelford has the authority to submit a CDBG 

application for federal funding and to enter into a contract with McHenry County for 

funding award, 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Woodstock City Council hereby 

approves this project and authorizes application to the CDBG Program through McHenry 

County in the amount of $180,000 for the Zimmerman Road Stormwater Management 

Project. 

 

Passed and approved this 17
th
 day of February, 2015. 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

(SEAL)    APPROVED: 

     ______________________________ 

     Mayor Pro Tem Michael Turner 

 

ATTEST: _________________________________ 

  City Clerk Arleen Quinn 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.3



       City of    

               
 

City Manager’s Off ice                                                121  W.  Calhoun  St reet   

Terry Wil lcockson                                           Woodstock,  I l l ino is  60098  

Grant  Wri ter                                                                                            815/338-4300  ext .  11128                               

                                                                                                                       fax 815/33 4-2269  

                                                                                                       gran twri ter@woodstocki l .gov       

                                                                                                                 www.woodstocki l .gov  

Memo 

To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

From: Terry Willcockson, Grant Writer 

Date: February 10, 2015 

Re: Consideration of a Resolution to Approve a Grant Application for ComEd Green Region – 

Donato Conservation Area Project 

The attached Resolution to approve the ComEd Green Region grant application for “Pathways to 

Education at William C. Donato Conservation Area” project is respectfully submitted for City Council’s 

consideration. 

 

The City of Woodstock assumed ownership of 30 acres of in-town woods and wetlands in the 

1990’s, reduced to a 25-acre parcel in 2005.  Referred to as the Albert/Gerry Street Nature Area, 

the wetlands’ proximity to Woodstock High School offered the opportunity for an enterprising 

instructor, William Donato, to explore ways to utilize this natural resource as an outdoor learning 

lab.  For the past several years, Mr. Donato has been actively integrating lessons using this 

outdoor area into his AP Environmental Science and Environmental Science class curriculums.   

 

Students have benefited from hands-on experience in identifying, and removing, invasive 

species; in understanding complex ecosystems found in this terrain; and, in evaluating seasonal 

influence on hydrology and stormwater management.  Mr. Donato has even used this area for 

lessons in his Forensics classes, instructing students on tracking methods and identifying types of 

soils and pollens in assessing possible crime scenes.  In addition, members of The Land 

Conservancy supervise students on Senior Service Day to do clear-cutting and annual burns here. 

 

Educational usage of this City-owned area has become such a valued part of the WHS 

experience, students were encouraged recently by Political Science instructor John Headley to 

submit a request to the City to rename the area in honor of Mr. Donato, and City Council 

approved the park’s name change to the William C. Donato Conservation Area on 12/16/14.   

 

Rewarding Mr. Donato’s efforts has received much press attention and many positive comments 

from the community, and will naturally attract more visitors to this conveniently-located nature 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 17, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 40d



area, as well as inspire further types of educational experiences by other teachers.  In order for 

classes to initially traverse the wetlands, wooden pallets were laid down many years ago.  These 

pallets have since deteriorated and are no longer a suitable method for accommodating students 

or other visitors.  Increased awareness and usage of this park makes ensuring its safety and 

accessibility a priority, especially as it relates to the encircling walkways. 

 

To address this identified need, five members of the school’s Engineering Design & 

Development class were offered the opportunity to submit potential designs for new and 

improved nature area walkways.  With supervision from Engineering instructor Steve Thompson, 

and using guidelines provided by the national Project Lead The Way program, these students 

have met with the City’s Assistant Public Works Director, the Parks & Facilities Superintendent, 

the Transportation Commission Chair, the Parks & Rec Commission, the Grant Writer, McHenry 

County Soil & Water and McHenry County Conservation District reps, to learn about and 

analyze all aspects of how to design and build the new structure, as well as the steps required to 

receive approvals and funding to implement this type of public service project.   

 

Involving students in this entire problem-solving process, while introducing them to a variety of 

public agencies, is an outstanding example of “service learning,” a growing trend in education 

today.  This collaboration with D200 began with facilitating the use of a municipal-owned area as 

a valuable teaching tool.  By further assigning students the role of contributing to the park 

improvements required as a result, the project ultimately demonstrates to young people the 

multiple benefits of ongoing communication and cooperation between governmental 

organizations. 

 

The guidelines for ComEd’s Green Region grant program require a 100% match in committed 

funds, with a maximum request of $10,000.  City Council’s approval is therefore requested for 

committed funds of $10,000 to support submission of “Pathways to Education at William C. 

Donato Conservation Area” grant application in the amount of $10,000. 

 

It is recommended that the attached Resolution identified as Document No. _____, A 

Resolution Authorizing Participation in the 2015 ComEd Green Region Program for 

Pathways to Education at William C. Donato Conservation Area Project be approved.  

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
4



RESOLUTION NO. 15-R-_______ 

 

CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

McHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

 

A Resolution Authorizing Participation in the  

2015 ComEd Green Region Program  

for Pathways to Education at William C. Donato Conservation Area Project 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock  (“Applicant”) desires to undertake the Pathways to 

Education at William C. Donato Conservation Area Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Applicant desires to apply to the ComEd Green Region Program for a 

grant for the purpose of carrying out this project; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Applicant has received and understands the 2015 ComEd Green Region 

Program Guidelines. 

 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Woodstock City Council hereby 

approves this project and authorizes application to the ComEd Green Region Program in 

the amount of $10,000, and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT the Applicant commits to the expenditure of 

matching funds in the amount of $10,000 necessary for the project’s success. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 17
th

 day of February, 2015. 

 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

 

(SEAL)    APPROVED: 

 

 

     ____________________________________ 

 Mayor Pro Tem Michael Turner 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________________ 

City Clerk Arleen Quinn  

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.4



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

       City of    

               
 

Department of  Publ ic  Works                                                  phone 815 .338 . 6118  

326  Washin gton  St reet                                                      fax 815 .334 .226 3  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                       sp a rker@woodsto cki l . gov  

                                               www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 

 

To:   Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:  Shawn Parker , Sewer & Water Maintenance Superintendent  

 

Re:   Approval of Professional Engineering Services Work Order to  

Evaluate Existing Conditions at the Irving Avenue Lift Station   
 

Date:   February 10, 2015 

 

The City owns and operates twenty-one lift stations, which by design lifts sanitary sewage to a 

higher elevation allowing it to flow by gravity to another lift station or to one of two City-owned 

wastewater treatment plants.   

 

The Irving Avenue lift station dates back to the 1960’s.  In 2004, pumps and controls were 

upgraded to accommodate the new commercial site anchored by Jewel/Osco.  Other than that 

improvement, no physical changes have been made to the lift station.  It is a known fact that the 

area southeast of the intersection of IL Rt. 120 & Irving Avenue, where the lift station is located,  

contains peat soils.  Peat soils are unstable and they tend to retain moisture.  For a number of 

years, rainfall has significantly impacted the run times on the pumps within the lift station which 

leads one to believe that there is an increase of ground water seeping into the station.  This 

additional inflow reduces the capacity of the station, takes up capacity in the sanitary sewer 

system, and takes up capacity at the wastewater treatment plant.  

 

Funds ($30,000) were approved in the FY14/15 Utility Fund CIP in line item #60-54-7-785 titled 

I/ I Improvements.  Within that line item are funds to reimburse those residents who qualified for 

the City’s Cost Reimbursement Program for the installation of Overhead Sewers or Backflow 

Devices in addition to paying for an evaluation of existing conditions at the Irving Avenue lift 

station.  To date, $7,300 has been expended to those eligible for the reimbursement program 

leaving a balance of $22,700 to pay for a lift station evaluation.      

 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 17, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 40e



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

The City requested and received a proposal from its Consulting Engineers, Baxter & Woodman 

to perform the following scope of services: 

 

 Televise the trunk sewer along Irving Avenue from E. Calhoun Street north to the lift 

station.   

 Review televising video and provide recommendations for rehabilitation. 

 Prepare an Engineer’s report detailing the results of the evaluation, recommendations, 

and conclusions.    

 

Compensation for these services will be in accordance with the Engineering Services Agreement 

dated March 12, 2012 at a cost not-to-exeed $19,500.  Based upon the results of this evaluation, 

the City may need to provide additional funding for the construction phase of this project in 

future years.  Because the City needs to determine the proper corrective action to resolve the 

cause of the extra flow to this lift station, it is recommended that the City Council approve 

the attached professional engineering services work order proposal from Baxter & 

Woodman for the evaluation of existing conditions at the Irving Avenue lift Station at a 

cost not-to-exceed $19,500. 

 

 

c:  Paul Ruscko 

 Jeff Van Landuyt  
 

rstelford
Approved







…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

       City of    

               
Depart ment  of  Publ ic  Wo rks  

3 2 6  Wash in gton  S t r ee t  

Wo od s tock ,  I l l i n o i s  6 0 0 9 8  
   8 1 5 /33 8 -6 11 8  ♦  Fax  8 1 5 /3 3 4 -2 2 6 3  

p ru sck o@ wo od s tock i l . g o v  

www. wo od s t ock i l . go v  

To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:  Paul R. Ruscko, Public Works Director 

 

Re: Approval of the Standard Terms for Professional Services Agreement for 

Municipal Landfill Monitoring and Reporting by Conestoga-Rovers & 

Associates 

 

Date: February 10, 2015 

 

On January 20, 2015, the City Council approved an agreement with Conestoga-Rovers & 

Associates (CRA) for professional services for the Woodstock Municipal Landfill site from 

January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2016, for a total two year cost of $37,000. 

 

Upon processing the approved agreement, CRA discovered that they had not included their 

Standard Terms For Professional Services in the document transmitted to the City.  They 

acknowledged the oversight and requested approval of the aforementioned document. 

 

Due to the fact that the Standard Terms For Professional Services is in essence a part of the 

agreement with CRA, it needs to be approved by the City Council before it can be executed on 

behalf of the City.  Attached is CRA’s Standard Terms For Professional Services for 

consideration, that has been revised based upon comments provided by the City attorney. 

 

The City attorney has reviewed the attached document and found the language to be acceptable.  

Therefore, it is recommended that the City Council approve Conestoga-Rovers & 

Associates’ Standard Terms For Professional Services applicable to the professional 

services agreement for the Woodstock Municipal Landfill site from January 1, 2015 

through December 31, 2016. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 17, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 40f







…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

       City of    

               
Depart ment  of  Publ ic  Wo rks  

3 2 6  Wash in gton  S t r ee t  

Wo od s tock ,  I l l i n o i s  6 0 0 9 8  
   8 1 5 /33 8 -6 11 8  ♦  Fax  8 1 5 /3 3 4 -2 2 6 3  

p ru sck o@ wo od s tock i l . g o v  

www. wo od s t ock i l . go v  

To: Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From: Paul R. Ruscko, Public Works Director 

 

Re: Consideration of an Ordinance Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental 

Agreement Between the County of McHenry, the City of Woodstock, and the McHenry 

County Conservation District for the Design, Construction, Maintenance and 

Reconstruction of a Bike Path Along U.S. Route 14 from Lake Avenue to West Lake 

Shore Drive 

 

Date: February 9, 2015 

 

The Illinois Department of Transportation’s proposed highway plans for the reconstruction and 

addition of lanes to U.S. Route 14 from West Lake Shore Drive to Lucas Road includes the 

installation of a 10-foot wide multi-use path.  The issue that has been identified is that the limits 

of this project leave a 1,400-foot gap from the existing multi-use path on Lake Avenue and the 

new multi-use path on U.S. Route 14.  This will force path users to leave the safety of the multi-

use path and traverse the gap along the shoulder of this major highway.  This gap creates an 

unsafe condition for the users of the multi-use path and needs to be addressed. 

 

The County of McHenry, the City of Woodstock, and the McHenry County Conservation 

District have proposed a partnership to facilitate the construction of a 10-foot wide multi-use 

path from Lake Avenue to West Lake Shore Drive to eliminate the aforementioned gap.  This 

partnership will need to be formalized with an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) that will 

serve as the official contract and contain terms for completing the work described as follows. 

 

The City will serve as the lead agency coordinating the design (Phase I and II engineering), 

necessary right-of-way acquisition, permitting, Phase III engineering, and construction of the 

multi-use path.  The City will perform and fund the necessary design, right-of-way acquisition, 

and permitting.  (The estimated cost is $25,000 without right-of-way.)  Based on a cursory 

review of right-of-way it appears the City and State own the necessary property.   The City will 

enter into an IGA with and/or obtain a permit from IDOT to construct the multi-use path with 

80% being funded by the State of Illinois and 20% being funded locally.  McHenry County will 

fund the 20% local share of the construction cost.  (The estimated cost is $50,000.)  Finally, the 

McHenry County Conservation District will provide ongoing maintenance and reconstruct the 

multi-use path as needed. 

 

The McHenry County Division of Transportation has requested that the attached IGA be 

considered for approval at the Transportation Committee meeting on February 18
th

 and the 

County Board meeting on March 3
rd

.  The McHenry County Conservation District plans to 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
February 17, 2015 City CouncilManager's Report 40g



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

consider approval of this IGA at their Conservation District Board meeting on February 19
th

.  

City staff has reviewed the proposed agreement and is satisfied with the IGA as presented. 

 

It is recommended that the City Council approve the attached Ordinance, identified as 

Document # ______, authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the attached 

Intergovernmental Agreement between the County of McHenry, the City of Woodstock 

and the McHenry County Conservation District for the design, construction, maintenance 

and reconstruction of a bike path along U.S. Route 14 from Lake Avenue to West Lake 

Shore Drive, subject to final review and approval by the City Attorney. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
5



 

 

 

 

 ORDINANCE #: 15-O-________  

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

COUNTY OF MCHENRY, THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK AND THE 

MCHENRY COUNTY CONSERVATION DISTRICT FOR THE 

DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE AND 

RECONSTRUCTION OF A BIKE PATH ALONG U.S. ROUTE 14 

FROM LAKE AVENUE TO WEST LAKE SHORE DRIVE 
 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, the County of McHenry, and the 

McHenry County Conservation District are public agencies and governmental units 

within the meaning of the Illinois Governmental Cooperation Act, as specified at 5 ILCS 

220/1, et seq., and 

 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act and Article 7 

of the Constitution of the State of Illinois includes fostering cooperation among 

governmental bodies; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, public agencies, and governmental 

units are authorized by Article 7, Section 10 of the Constitution of the State of Illinois to 

cooperate, contract, and otherwise associate for public purposes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the State of Illinois through the Illinois Department of 

Transportation has developed a road improvement program including improvements to 

U.S. Route 14 from West Lake Shore Drive in the CITY OF WOODSTOCK east to 

Crystal Lake Road in the City of Crystal Lake; hereinafter referred to as the 

IMPROVEMENT; and 

 

 WHEREAS, U.S. Route 14 is under the jurisdiction of the State of Illinois; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the IMPROVEMENT includes the construction of a bike path along 

the north side U.S. Route 14, from West Lake Shore Drive east to McHenry County 

Conservation District’s Ridgefield Trace bike route, that is of importance to regional 

mobility for non-motorized users; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the IMPROVEMENT does not include a bike path between Lake 

Avenue and West Lake Shore Drive creating a gap for non-motorized users along U.S. 

Route 14; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, the County of McHenry and the 

McHenry County Conservation District are desirous to complete a bike path connection 

linking the bike path that is to be constructed as part of the IMPROVEMENT along U.S. 

Route 14 east of West Lake Shore Drive and the CITY OF WOODSTOCK’s existing 

bike path along Lake Avenue; and 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.5



 

 WHEREAS, it is appropriate that the CITY OF WOODSTOCK enter into an 

Intergovernmental Agreement with the County of McHenry and the McHenry County 

Conservation District to formalize the expectations of the design, construction, 

maintenance and reconstruction of a bike path along U.S. Route 14 from Lake Avenue to 

West Lake Shore Drive and determine the CITY OF WOODSTOCK’s level of 

participation. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of 

the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, that the attached 

Intergovernmental Agreement by and between the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, the County 

of McHenry and the McHenry County Conservation District is hereby approved and 

accepted and that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute said 

Intergovernmental Agreement on behalf of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK. 

 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois and approved by me this 17
th

 day of February, 2015. 

 

AYES:_____________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:_____________________________________________________ 

 

ABSTAINEES:______________________________________________ 

 

ABSENTIONS:______________________________________________ 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Michael Turner 

      Mayor Pro Tem 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

City Clerk 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 

I, Arleen Quinn, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, acting and qualified Clerk of 

the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and that as such Clerk, I am the 

keeper of the records, minutes, and proceedings of the Mayor and City Council of said City. 

 

I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the City Council of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK held on the 17
th

 day of February, 2015, the attached Ordinance was 

passed by the Mayor and City Council. 

 

GIVEN under my hand and seal this _______ day of February, 2015. 

 

 

      _________________________________ 

      City Clerk 

 

 

 

   (SEAL) 

 
 



 

1 

AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF MCHENRY, THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, AND THE 

MCHENRY COUNTY CONSERVATION DISTRICT FOR THE DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, 

MAINTENANCE AND RECONSTRUCTION OF A BIKE PATH ALONG U.S. ROUTE 14 

FROM LAKE AVENUE TO WEST LAKE SHORE DRIVE 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this ______ day of _________ A.D. ______ and between the 

County of McHenry, Illinois acting by and through its County Board, hereinafter referred to as 

the COUNTY, and the City of Woodstock, an Illinois Municipal Corporation, acting by and 

through its Mayor and City Council, hereinafter referred to as the CITY, and the McHenry 

County Conservation District, acting by and through its Board, hereinafter referred to as the 

DISTRICT. 

 

WITNESSETH 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Illinois through the Illinois Department of Transportation has 

developed a road improvement program including improvements to U.S. Route 14 from West 

Lake Shore Drive in the City of Woodstock east to Crystal Lake Road in the City of Crystal 

Lake; hereinafter referred to as the IMPROVEMENT; and 

 

WHEREAS, U.S. Route 14 is under the jurisdiction of the State of Illinois; and 

 

WHEREAS, the IMPROVEMENT includes the construction of a bike path along the north side 

U.S. Route 14, from West Lake Shore Drive east to the DISTRICT’S Ridgefield Trace bike 

route, that is of importance to regional mobility for non-motorized users; and 

 

WHEREAS, the IMPROVEMENT does not include a bike path between Lake Avenue and West 

Lake Shore Drive creating a gap for non-motorized users along U.S. Route 14; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY, COUNTY and the DISTRICT are desirous to complete a bike path 

connection linking the bike path that is to be constructed as part of the IMPROVEMENT along 

U.S. Route 14 east of West Lake Shore Drive and the CITY’s existing bike path along Lake 

Avenue; hereinafter referred to as the BIKE PATH; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY will enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the State of Illinois 

to construct the BIKE PATH, 80% of which being funded by the State of Illinois and a 20% 

local match funded by the COUNTY; and 

 

WHEREAS, the agreement between the CITY and the State of Illinois will address maintenance 

and reconstruction of the BIKE PATH when needed in the future; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY, COUNTY and the DISTRICT are in agreement with the construction of 

the IMPROVEMENT and the BIKE PATH; and 

 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY and the CITY and the DISTRICT are authorized by the terms and 

provisions of Section 10 of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution and the Intergovernmental 



 

2 

Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq, to enter into intergovernmental agreements, ventures, and 

undertakings to perform jointly any governmental purpose or undertaking any of them could do 

singularly; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the COUNTY, 

the CITY and the DISTRICT hereto mutually agree to perform as follows: 

 

1. The CITY shall serve as the lead agency coordinating the design, necessary right-of-way, 

permitting, Phase III engineering, and construction of the BIKE PATH.  The CITY shall pay 

for all costs associated with the design, necessary right-of-way and permitting associated 

with the BIKE PATH.  The estimated cost is $25,000 without right-of-way. 

 

2. In conjunction with the design the DISTRICT shall have the right to have final approval on 

all plans for the construction of BIKE PATH.  Said approval shall not be unreasonably 

withheld.  If agreement on final design cannot be reached between the parties then IDOT 

Bureau of Local Roads standards shall be followed. 

 

3. The 20% local match requirement for construction of the BIKE PATH, as required by the 

State of Illinois, shall be funded by the COUNTY.  The estimated cost is $50,000. 

 

4. The DISTRICT shall maintain the BIKE PATH in accordance with the CITY’S agreement 

with the State of Illinois.  Maintenance activities are defined as any activity including 

reconstruction necessary to cause the BIKE PATH to function in accordance with DISTRICT 

standards for public improvements to the extent which the public improvements are 

intended.  The CITY will maintain the grass and any landscaping within the public right-of-

way along U.S. Route 14. 

 

5. The COUNTY agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY and the DISTRICT, 

its elected officials, its duly appointed officials, agents, employees, and representatives, from 

and against any and all claims, suits, settlements, actions, losses, expenses, damages, injuries, 

judgments, and demands arising from the negligent actions of the COUNTY arising from, 

growing out of, or connected with the construction and/or operation of the BIKE PATH.. 

 

6. The DISTRICT agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CITY and the COUNTY, 

its elected officials, its duly appointed officials, agents, employees, and representatives, from 

and against any and all claims, suits, settlements, actions, losses, expenses, damages, injuries, 

judgments, and demands arising from the negligent actions of the DISTRICT arising from, 

growing out of, or connected with the construction and/or operation of the BIKE PATH.. 

 

7. The CITY agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the COUNTY, and the 

DISTRICT, its elected officials, its duly appointed officials, agents, employees and 

representatives, from and against any and all claims, suits, settlements, actions, losses, 

expenses, damages, injuries, judgments, and demands arising from the negligent actions of 

the CITY arising from, growing out of, or connected with the construction and/or operation 

of the BIKE PATH. 

 



 

3 

8. It is mutually agreed by and between the parties hereto that nothing contained in THIS 

AGREEMENT is intended nor shall be construed in any manner or form to limit the power 

or authority of the COUNTY or the Director of Transportation/ County Engineer to maintain, 

operate, improve, construct, re-construct, repair, build, widen, or expand any COUNTY 

Highway as best determined and provided by law. 

 

9. It is mutually agreed by and between the parties hereto that nothing contained in THIS 

AGREEMENT is intended nor shall be construed, as in any manner or form, creating or 

establishing a relationship of co-partners between the parties hereto, or as constituting the 

CITY and the DISTRICT (including its elected officials, duly appointed officials, officers, 

employees, and agents) the agent, representative, or employees of the COUNTY for any 

purpose, or in any manner, whatsoever.  The CITY and the DISTRICT are to be and shall 

remain independent of the COUNTY with respect to all services performed under THIS 

AGREEMENT. 

 

10. It is mutually agreed by and between the parties hereto that the provisions of THIS 

AGREEMENT are severable.  If any provision, paragraph, section, subdivision, clause, 

phrase, or word of THIS AGREEMENT is for any reason held to be contrary to law, or 

contrary to any rule or regulation having the force and effect of law, such decision shall not 

affect the remaining portions of THIS AGREEMENT. 

 

11. It is mutually agreed by and between the parties hereto that the agreement of the parties 

hereto is contained herein, and that THIS AGREEMENT supersedes all oral agreements and 

negotiations between the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof as well as any 

previous agreements presently in effect between the parties hereto relating to the subject 

matter hereof. 

 

12. It is mutually agreed by and between the parties hereto that any alterations, amendments 

deletions, or waivers of any provision of THIS AGREEMENT shall be valid only when 

expressed in writing and duly executed by the parties hereto. 

 

13. THIS AGREEMENT shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, 

their successors and assigns, provided however, that no party hereto shall assign any interest 

hereunder without the prior written consent and approval of the others and any such 

assignment, without said prior written consent and approval shall be null and void and of no 

force and effect. 

 

14. Any notices required or permitted hereunder shall be sufficiently given if mailed by certified 

mail, return receipt requested to the parties hereto as follow: 

 

MCHENRY COUNTY DIVISION OF TRANSPORTATION 

16111 Nelson Road 

Woodstock, Illinois 60098 

Attention:  Mr. Joseph R. Korpalski, Jr., P.E. 

Director of Transportation/County Engineer 

 

 



 

4 

CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

121 W. Calhoun Street 

Woodstock, Illinois 60098 

Attention: Mr. Roscoe C. Stelford 

City Manager 

 

MCHENRY COUNTY CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

18410 U.S. Route 14 

Woodstock, Illinois 60098 

Attention: Ms. Elizabeth Kessler 

Executive Director 

 

15. The terms of THIS AGREEMENT will be construed in accordance with the laws of Illinois, 

and if any disputes arise, said disputes shall be decided under the jurisdiction and governed 

by the laws of Illinois. The venue for any disputes involving interpretations of THIS 

AGREEMENT shall be the 22
nd

 Judicial Circuit of the State of Illinois, McHenry County, 

Illinois. 

 

16. THIS AGREEMENT is made subject to available budgetary appropriations and shall not 

create any obligation on behalf of the COUNTY, the CITY, or the DISTRICT in excess of 

such appropriations in their respective budgets. In the event that no funds or insufficient 

funds are appropriated and budgeted, THIS AGREEMENT shall terminate without penalty or 

expense to any party thirty (30) days after written notification of termination from that party 

except that the indemnification provisions of Sections 5, 6 and 7 of this Agreement shall 

survive such termination for any claims or other matters under those sections that may have 

arisen prior to such termination. 

 

17. Any party may terminate this Agreement without cause upon providing sixty (60) days’ 

written notice to the other parties, except that the indemnification provisions of Sections 5, 6 

and 7 of this Agreement shall survive such termination for any claims or other matters under 

those sections that may have arisen prior to such termination. If any party or multiple parties 

elect to terminate their participation from this agreement the remaining parties may elect, by 

mutual consent, to keep the agreement in full force and effect at which time the cost for the 

reconstruction referenced in Paragraph 4 shall be split evenly among the remaining parties. 

  



 

5 

 

18. Each person signing below on behalf of one of the parties hereto agrees, represents and 

warrants that he or she has been duly and validly authorized to sign THIS AGREEMENT on 

behalf of their party. 

 

ATTEST:     CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

 

 

_________________________  _________________________ 

Arleen Quinn, Clerk    Michael Turner, Mayor Pro Tem 

City of Woodstock    City of Woodstock 

 

 

 

ATTEST: MCHENRY COUNTY CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

 

 

_________________________  _________________________ 

Brandon Thomas, Secretary   David Brandt, President 

Conservation District    Conservation District 

 

 

ATTEST:     COUNTY OF MCHENRY 

 

 

 

_________________________  _________________________ 

Mary E. McClellan, Clerk   Joseph Gottemoller, Chairman 

McHenry County    McHenry County Board 

 

 

 

 

 

      Date: ______________________ 


	February 17, 2015 City Council Agenda
	A. Floor Discussion: Chester Gould Day Proclamation
	B. Minutes of Previous Meetings: February 3, 2015 
	C. Warrants:
	Warrant 3651
	Warrant 3652
	MFT #543

	D. Minutes and Reports:
	Community & Economic Development Year-End Report 2014
	Economic Development Commission Minutes - November 11, 2014

	E. Manager's Report No. 40
	1. Liquor Amendment
	Doc.1

	2. Walnut/ Ash Stormwater Improvements 
	Doc.2

	3. Zimmerman Road Stormwater Improvemenmts
	Doc.3

	4. ComEd Green Region
	Doc.4

	5. Irving Avenue Lift Station
	6. Woodstock Municipal Landfill
	7. Bike Path
	Doc.5





